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Chairman’s statement
FEREE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), |
present the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
achieved revenue of approximately HK$1,495.0 million with
profits attributable to owners amounting to approximately
HK$386.4 million and basic earnings per share of
approximately HK25 cents. The Board does not recommend
any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015.
During the year, the Board has declared and paid an interim
dividend of HK$0.255 per share. Subsequent to the end of the
year, a special dividend of HK$0.153 per share has been
declared to be payable to the shareholders whose names
appear on the Company’s register of members at the close of
business on 1 March 2016. During the year, the Group
achieved Underlying Profit of approximately HK$452.1 million,
a decrease of 11.0% over 2014.

Note: Underlying profit (“Underlying Profit”) is calculated as profit for the year
attributable to the owners of the Company excluding the professional
fees and other one-off expenses related to business combination,
amortization and depreciation charges arising from business valuation.

In 2015, China’s gross domestic products recorded a growth
rate of 6.9% being the lowest in 25 years, while global
economy was also at a sluggish pace. Various political
measures brought to the cigarette industry continued to pose
challenges to cigarette package printing business in China.
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Chairman’s statement
ETEREE

The cigarette package printing segment, the core business of
the Group, showed a decrease in revenue as the sales volume
declined, but was partly offset by a mild increase in average
selling price.

In 2015, the cigarette and the cigarette packages printing
industry continued to be affected by the tendering system,
nationwide austerity measures and industry consolidation. The
increase in the nationwide tobacco tax rate and retail price in
May 2015 and stricter public smoking ban, further dampened
the public demand for cigarette. This in turn slowed the overall
production level of the cigarette industry especially in the 2nd
half of 2015 and therefore affected our sales volume. The
accumulation of cigarette inventory in the industry in the 2nd
half of 2015 also brought price pressure into the supply chain.
As a result of the foregoing, the national production volume
and sales of cigarette decreased slightly as compared to 2014.
The Chinese government continues to upgrade the tobacco
industry by encouraging the growth of top tier products at the
expense of mid-to-low tier products. Therefore, the mid-to-low
tier business which are significant to Group’s revenue, was
dampened during the year but was partially offset by the
Group's effort in increasing revenue and volume of the high tier
business. The Group’s subcontracting business maintained
relatively high gross margin but was affected substantially due
to the drop in sales volume. Mainly due to drop in average
selling price in low tier products, the gross profit margin of this
segment recorded a slight decrease as compare to 2014.

In 2015, the Group has spent extensive efforts in infrastructure
improvement across all of its factories which included
resources integration and optimization among our production
facilities. In particular the commencement of production in the
newly constructed Anhui Technology Park plays an important
role in the Group. Such strategic actions enable us to keep
pace with new technological advancements, further capacity
expansion, promote further cost savings and develop new
initiatives such as intelligent factory and business
transformation. The Group also began its first mass production
in the business of QR Code printing in 2nd half of 2015 and
has printed a total of 6.6 million master cases in 2015.
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Chairman’s statement

ETEHRES

The Group has completed the disposal of the provision of
printing of book business in January 2015.

The segment profit of laminated paper manufacturing has
increased by 43.7% mainly due to increase in tailor-made
orders from few major customers while maintaining cost at a
stable level.

On 22 May 2015, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with the placing agent,
an independent third party, to place up to 80,000,000 placing
shares to not less than six placees, who included connected
persons of the Company and staff of the Group, at the placing
price of HK$1.70 per share, representing a discount of about
3.4% to the closing price of HK$1.76 per share on 22 May
2015 (the “Placing”).

The Placing was completed on 6 July 2015 in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement under
which a total of 79,416,000 placing shares (with nominal value
of HK$397,080) had been successfully placed by the placing
agent at the placing price of HK$1.70 per share. The net
proceeds of approximately HK$132.5 million (representing a
net issue price of about HK$1.656 per share) raised have been
applied for transformation of the Group’s factories and as
repayment of bank loan.
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Chairman’s statement

EFRBES

PROSPECTS

On 22 December 2015, Office of the State Council issued (&
M8 2015 F R M2016 F 1T 3 E 1T A 15 TIERY A AN) (State
Tobacco Circular 2015 No. 368) stipulates that the state
objective for 2016 is to reduce the accumulation of inventory
through promotion, decreasing production, enhancing brand
building and adjusting the state of the market by means of
production by order and co-production.

As China has entered into the “new normal”, economic growth
is heading into a period of low-medium growth. The tobacco
industry is set for further brand consolidation. In 2016, tobacco
industry is likely to face challenges arisen from the
accumulation of inventory, the changing eco-system of
cigarette industry and downward pressure from the macro-
economy. To change and adapt to the new economy, the
Company has followed the industrial development trend by
improving its competitive strengths on technology and
innovation under the guiding principles of “consolidation,
upgrade and transformation”, in particular investing in
digitization, intelligence production, plant automation and
internet connectivity of products for expanding the value chain.
Foreseeing the challenges aheads the Group adopted the
following strategies.

Transformation from traditional printing oriented
business to the provision of all-in-one solution in the
tobacco industry

Leveraging on the Group tobacco package printing and
research and development experience, to strengthen our
market position as one of the leading cigarette packages
printing companies in the PRC, aside from the traditional
printing service, the Group set to position itself as a prominent
player in the PRC cigarette supply chain to provide an all-in-
one solution to the China National Tobacco Corporation
(“CNTC”) customers encompassing collection of relevant
market data, proactively research on new packaging material
and technique, procurement of material, production of
package and sales of cigarette. Working closely with the
CNTC customers with an aim to induce further demand and
assist brand enhancement and differentiation in the market.
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Chairman’s statement

ETEHRES

In the 2nd half of 2015, the commencement of QR Code
printing refer to as “One Pack, One Code” on the cigarette
pack for the CNTC customers embarks the first step in the
Group’s roadmap for the construction of 020 platform for
CNTC and retail shop network that sells cigarettes. Leveraging
on the resources of China Tobacco Guangxi Industrial Co. Ltd,
our joint venture partner for the O20 business, we will manage
the QR Code system and 020 platform from code origination,
proofread, management for QR Code to operation of non-
cigarette online sales. The data collected from the 020
platform enables us to engage in Big Data and competition
planning, and sales analysis, which will help us to assist the
CNTC customers more efficiently. Such platform also enables
CNTC customers to procure market data in a timely manner
for various marketing campaign and enables the Group tap
into e-commerce and m-commerce. Target market will initially
be the near provinces where our Group has operation in.

Considering the matured tobacco packaging industry is limited
in growth catalysts, it is the Group’s strategy to decrease the
reliance on cigarette packaging printing business and to
diversify into non-cigarette packaging. Furthermore, by self-
developing own packaging solution or technique or by
subcontracting with other consumer products, revenue base
can be enhanced. With the commencement of the Anhui
Technology Park, it is aimed to become a pilot site for the
Group’s non-cigarette packaging business. The Group will
from time to time strive to take the technological and cost
advantage of Anhui Technology Park to identify suitable non-
cigarette packaging business to enhance the performance of
the Group.
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Chairman’s statement
ETEREE

It is the Group’s corporate mission to continue to explore ways
to improve its financial performance, to equip the Group with
growth momentum, to diversify its operations internationally
into new and more profitable businesses and to broaden the
sources of revenue within acceptable risk level. Hence, the
Company does not rule out the possibility of investing in or
diversifying into other profitable business as long as it is in the
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
Also, as part of its routine exercise, the Company reviews the
performance of its existing investment portfolio and evaluates
the investment potentials of other investment opportunities
available to the Company from time to time. Subject to the
results of such reviews, the Company may make suitable
investment decisions according to the then circumstance and
information available which may involve the change of the
asset allocation of its investment portfolio and/or expanding its
investment with a view of realising and/or optimising the
expected return and minimising the risks. Meanwhile, the
Company does not preclude the possibility that the Company
may implement debt and/or equity fund raising plan(s) to
satisfy the financing needs arising out of any business
development of the Group as well as to improve its financial
position in the event that suitable fund raising opportunities
arise, as the Company has from time to time been approached
by investors for potential investment projects. Notwithstanding
the Group’s intention to explore any potential new
business(es), it is the firm intention of the Group to strive to
further develop its principal business of cigarette packages
printing and manufacturing of laminated paper in the PRC.

As stated in the “13th Five-Year Plan”, China will implement
more stringent requirement for green manufacture initiatives,
including encouraging upgrade of production facility,
transformation into high-technology production technique. To
this end, and the Group formed a joint venture with Tianjin
Rongcai Technology Co., Ltd, a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of Masterwork Machinery Company Limited in December 2015
to develop intelligent and environmental-friendly facilities for
the tobacco packaging industry. The first of such prototype
production line for cigarette package printing is expected to be
ready in the Group’s Shenzhen production facility in 2016.
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Chairman’s statement
FERESE

It is also the intention for the Group to engage in research,
development and sales of intelligent automated packaging
solution which can then provide the solution to different
printing and packaging industry through the joint venture to
broaden the Group’s income source. The Group will also
invest resource in developing its own intelligent property
relating to printing and packaging business.

With the completion of our Anhui Technology Park in the fourth
quarter of 2015, it has equipped with large scale automation
production facilities along with a new tobacco research centre
capable of developing new packaging product and solution
including but not limited to those in collaboration with the
Group’s CNTC customers.

As part of further utilizing our application of QR Code in
operation, after the upgrade of our enterprise resource
planning system, the Group is now capable of using QR code
as a control tool starting from the procurement cycle to sales
cycle to strengthen corporate efficiency, reduce lead time and
increase competitiveness.

Having a well established foundation and position knowing the
challenges and obstacles ahead, the Group will strive to
explore opportunities for strategic and synergetic collaboration,
including but not limited to merger and acquisition, forming of
joint ventures and/or strategic diversification and/or other
corporate action in the future should they be in the interest of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

With a long operating history and a sound financial position,
the Group is set to overcome the challenge and obstacles
brought by the changing eco-system of the industry and
macro-economy by positioning itself as a “Printing + Internet +
Value” enterprise which integrate our core printing and
packaging competence with the strategic use of internet, 020,
to transform ourselves to an all-in-one service provider, amid
the PRC economy transitional period to generate high value
added service to our stakeholders, to achieve win-win result
and to be geared with growth drivers.
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Chairman’s statement
ETEREE

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my gratitude to our customer and shareholders for
their continuing support, my fellow directors for their guidance
as well as our staff for their dedication and hard work.

Cai Xiao Ming, David
Chairman

24 March 2016
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Management discussion and analysis

EEENWmR DN

REVENUE

During the year, the revenue of the Group was approximately
HK$1,495.0 million (2014: HK$1,703.4 million), which
represents a decrease of approximately HK$208.4 million or
12.2% as compared with 2014. The revenues of our two
business segments, namely cigarette package printing
business and manufacturing of laminated papers decreased
by 12.8% to HK$1,446.4 million and increased by 9.5% to
HK$48.5 million respectively.

Decreased in revenue was mainly resulted from the drop in
sales volume of low to mid tier products as a consequence of
Group’s effort to develop high tier market during the year. The
decline in turnover was also affected by the devaluation of
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars. Despite price pressures
brought by mandatory tendering system and over-
accumulation of cigarette in China tobacco industry, average
selling price of Group’s products had recorded a mild increase.
The sales volumes of cigarette package printing segment
decreased from approximately 2.3 million cases in 2014 to 1.9
million cases in 2015.

GROSS PROFIT

During the year, gross profit of the Group decreased by
approximately HK$90.9 million or 16.4% to HK$462.0 million
as compared with 2014. The gross profit margin has
decreased from 32.5% in 2014 to 30.9% in 2015. It was
mainly (i) due to price pressure of intensifying tendering
system; and (ii) increase in production costs relative to
revenue. Accordingly, the Group has spent tremendous effort
into streamlining production process to improve productivity
and reduce labour. Continuous equipment modifications were
made to offset the mandatory increase in wages in the PRC.
The Group’s procurement of raw materials was integrated into
a single platform to keep costs of material under tighter control
and mitigate the adverse effect of price pressure on our gross
margin.
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Management discussion and analysis
EEENWR DN

OTHER INCOME

Other income increased by HK$9.1 million as compared with
2014. It was mainly due to increase in government grant,
services income and interest income on long-term receivables
arising from the disposal of printing of book business, by
HK$2.9 million, HK$3.0 million and HK$3.2 million
respectively.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other gains and losses represent net foreign exchange losses
and gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment. The
gain in 2015 was largely attributable to the gain on disposal of
obsolete machinery.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
The selling and distribution expenses increased approximately
by HK$9.1 million or 24.8% to boost the declining sales.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND OTHER
EXPENSES

During the year, administrative and other expenses amounted
to HK$112.0 million in total, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$7.5 million or 6.3% when compared with
2014. It was mainly due to decrease in directors’ emoluments
and miscellaneous expenses by HK$6.1 milion and HK$1.4
million, respectively.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs decreased by approximately HK$8.7 million, as
the Group’s syndicated loans were fully settled during the year
and the Group has adopted the more flexible and economical
bilateral loans.
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SHARE OF PROFIT OF AN ASSOCIATE

Share of profit of an associate decreased by approximately by
HK$36.3 million to HK$178.6 million during 2015. It was
mainly attributable to the provision of full impairment loss by
the Group’s associated company during the year in relation to
loan for an aborted infrastructure project from which the Group
indirectly shared HK$27.1 millions loss. Besides, the
continuous price pressure under mandatory tendering and the
challenges to the PRC economy and the tobacco industry
contributed another HK$9.2 millions for the decrease in the
Group’s share of profit from this associated company.

TAXATION

The effective tax rate of the Group remained stable for the
Group, decreased slightly from approximately 17.8% to 16.7%
during the year.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company decreased by
HK$67.3 million to HK$386.4 million or 14.8%, mainly
attributable to the decrease in turnover and a decrease in the
share of profit from an associate as described above.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group entered into agreement to dispose of the provision
of printing of book business in December 2014, and such
business was regarded as discontinued operations in Year
2015.

During the year, the earnings from the printing of cigarette
packages and manufacturing of laminated papers were
approximately HK$448.8 million (2014: HK$552.7 million) and
HK$12.5 million (2014: HK$8.7 million) respectively. Earnings
from the printing of cigarette packages accounted for
approximately 97.3% of the total segment earnings before
unallocated items. The earnings from the printing of cigarette
packages was decreased by approximately 18.8%, and
manufacturing of laminated papers were increased by
approximately 43.7%.
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FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated resources and banking facilities. As at 31 December
2015, the Group had net current assets of HK$271.8 million
(2014: HK$269.7 million), while the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents amounted to HK$299.8 million (2014: HK$379.0
million). As at 31 December 2015, the short-term interest-
bearing bank borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$536.0
million (2014: HK$740.7 million). Carrying amounts of trade
receivables, property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease
payments, investment properties and bank deposits pledged
for securing credit facilities amounted to approximately
HK$483.5 million (2014: HK$409.5 million), HK$113.9 million
(2014: HK$38.6 million), HK$4.8 million (2014: HK$5.2 million),
HK$123.8 million (2014: Nil) and HK$2.2 million (2014:
HK$85.8 million) respectively. As at 31 December 2015, the
Group’s gearing ratio, represented by the amount of interest-
bearing borrowings divided by shareholders equity, remained
stable at 27.3% (as at 31 December 2014: 27.6%). As at 31
December 2015 the Group had capital commitments for
purchase of property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$40.2 million (2014:HK$10.0 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND GUARANTEES
The Group did not provide any guarantees to third party and
had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015.

MBERARARBES
REE—RAHERNBEENERLIRITRY
ERNELEES N _TE—HF+_A
—t+—H XEENRBHEEFER
271,800,000 7w( = T — M F:
269,700,000/87T) * MASBE MRS KT
© % {E18 B 8 5299,800,000/% T (==&
— Y4 : 379,000,00087C) c R=ZF—H
F+ZA=+—H x&EEEHBEHIR
17188 /536,000,000 7T (=T — P04 :
740,700,000/870) - KRB EEREME
HOE S EBGIR - W2 - BERRE -
TENHEERIE - REMFEARIBITF R
BRI B 9 B 4 £ 483,500,000 L ( = F
—PH4E 409,500,000 7T) ~ 113,900,000
7 70 ( —Z — P04 : 38,600,000/ JT )
4,800,000/ 7T ( = F — M £ : 5,200,000
77T ) ~ 123,800,000 7L ( —Z — PO 4F :
=T ) %2,200,000% L( = F — M F:
85,800,00087T) c RZE—HF+H
=+—HB FAEEMNEEBRLIERE
27.3% (M= E—WmE+=_HA=+—8":
27.6%) HABE KT - E#ﬁﬁiéﬁ%ﬁ%wﬁ
REGSSEAEEHE - N2 —Hh
F+ZA=+—H FA5EEEEWHE

= & 5%t 2 & AN #HE 40,200,00078 70 (=
Z— P4 : 10,000,000 7TT) ©
HABBERIER
R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—8 AEEW

EAE=SJRHEERATEEMNEAN

2015FFERE BHITRBEBRERAD

15



16

Management discussion and analysis
EEENWR DN

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The printing of book services segment was disposed on 12
January 2015. Such disposal has no significant impact on the
financial position to the Group.

On 1 July 2015, Shenzhen Guilian Printing Limited (the
“SZGP”), one of the subsidiaries of the Company, entered into
a strategic cooperation agreement with Guangxi Haiyun Zhiyou
Property Service LLC B BB KM ERBEERETAF]
(the “Guangxi Haiyun”), an independent third party, to establish
the joint venture entity in Shenzhen Qianhai with an initial
registered capital of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$18,750,000) for a term of 20 years which
will be initially owned as to 51% by Guangxi Haiyun and as to
49% by SZGP for the purpose of developing the business of
provision of 2D Barcodes and O20 solutions for its customers.
Details of the transactions were set out in the announcement
of the Company on 6 July 2015.

On 10 July 2015, the Group entered into provisional sale and
purchase agreement with independent third parties to acquire
Best Legend International Holdings Limited, whose sole assets
are the entire 12th Floor and 3 car parking spaces on AXA
Centre located in Wanchai, Hong Kong (the “Property”) for a
total cash consideration of HK$205.9 million. The completion
took place on 31 August 2015. Part of the Property shall be
used as the Group’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
The Group intends to rent out the remaining part of the
Property as investment property to generate rental income to
the Group in the foreseeable future. Details of the transactions
were set out in the announcement of the Company on 10 July
2015.

EARBSERLIESEREAR
BERNRRTENEREE

ERMRIRBOHFER T —HF—H
T-HHE - AL ESHEUAEENY
BRI BMERZE -

R_ZE—HELA—B  KRARHERF
FYNEBENRI AR AT (DRYIEH ) S5
MNEZHERSBIRYERKBEREM
ARI([EMmEH) T B A EHE - U
RARINBIEKLEE AR Z— » Y15 T
&R A AR 15,000,000 7T (48 & B 4
18,750,000 7T ) + F R B20F © & F
51% 1 HEFRGHES + M49% B F
JEHHES  BENAERHEXFHERM
THIBERO0MATRER - BEAR S
MHFBENARRR-_E—RAFEAXA
EHEI AT -

RZZE-—RAFLtATH AEEHESF
NE=ZAFVEREEHRENERAR
© fX{8 205,900,000 7 7T U f# Best Legend
International Holdings Limited * 5% 2 7] A9
ME—BEERBAEEHFLZEFOI2ERE
RIEEFEBEM([ZMED - TEHR_T
—hFENA=T—B%E - ZMWEa—FB
DRERAEENEBEIELEEME - A
EE L EZENR T IS ERIREME
ARAI R R AR EERIESWA - B
AX I AFBHNARRAR_E—1F+
RATBELRNAM -

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2015



Management discussion and analysis
EEENWR DN

On 29 December 2015, SZGP and Tianjin Rongcai Technology
Co., Ltd (“Tianjin Rongcai”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
Masterwork Machinery Company Limited, entered into the joint
venture agreement to establish the joint venture company in
Tianjin, the PRC for: (i) the planning and design of intelligent
and environmentally-friendly production plant and system; (i)
the research and development, and sales of intelligent
automated robot among the tobacco packaging industry; (iii)
developing automated and environmentally-friendly facilities
and techniques to be applied in the tobacco packaging
industry; (iv) catalyzing the development of intelligent
packaging projects and any foreign investment and equity
acquisitions to ensure the pioneer level in the industry; and (v)
other businesses related to packaging and printing. Pursuant
to the terms of the joint venture agreement, the initial
registered capital of the joint venture company is
RMB30,000,000 and is contributed as to 60% by Tianjin
Rongcai and 40% by SZGP. Details of the transactions were
set out in the announcement of the Company on 29 December
2015.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material
acquisition or disposal made by the Group during the year.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopted a prudent strategy towards the treasury
and funding policies, with strong emphasis on risk control and
transactions directly related to the Group’s principal business.
Funds, primarily denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars, are normally placed with banks in short or medium
term deposits for working capital of the Group.
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The Group’s operations was mainly financed by funds
generated from its operations and borrowings. As at 31
December 2015, the borrowings were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, while the cash and cash
equivalents held by the Group were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group’s turnover is
denominated in Renminbi, while its costs and expenses are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. In
view of the prevailing macro-economic environment and the
volatile foreign exchange market, the Group is exposed to the
foreign exchange rate risk. An exchange loss was arisen due
to the translation of functional currency of Renminbi to
presentation currency of Hong Kong dollar during the reporting
period when Renminbi depreciated against Hong Kong dollar.
However, such translation is a non-cash item in nature and
has no practical effect to our day to day operation as majority
of our revenue and cost are all denominated in Renminbi.
Therefore, the Group did not enter into any foreign currency
hedging arrangements. The Group will closely monitor the
volatility of foreign exchange rate and apply the appropriate
hedging strategy subject to the then situation if appropriate.

As at 31 December 2015, assets with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$728 million (31 December 2014: HK$539
million) were pledged to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to Group.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 11 (2014: 14) and
1,130 (2014: 1,616) full-time staff based in Hong Kong and the
PRC respectively. The Group’s remuneration packages are
generally structured with reference to market terms and
individual merits. The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ base salaries. The Group also made contributions
to provident funds, elderly insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance and work-related injury insurance in
accordance with appropriate laws and regulations in the PRC.
The Group has adopted a share option scheme as a reward to
eligible high-caliber employees and to attract similar high
quality personnel that are valuable to the Group.
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Profile of directors and senior management
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. CAl Xiao Ming, David (¥:#8f), aged 38, was appointed
as an Executive Director on 18 December 2008. He was re-
designated as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 31
October 2014 and is responsible for the overall management
of the Group. He was appointed as a Chief Executive Officer
during the period from 3 May 2011 to 30 October 2014. Mr.
David Cai is currently a director of most subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. David Cai has more than 11 years of experience
in the packaging and printing industry gained from the
management of the Group’s business. Mr. David Cai joined
the Group in January 2001.

Mr. QIN Song (88#2), aged 43, is currently an Executive Director,
the Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of the Group with effect from 3 December 2015. Mr.
Qin joined the Group in May 2002, and worked, among other
positions, as the Office Administrator of the Group and General
Manager of various subsidiaries of the Company. Since
September 2005, Mr. Qin serves as the Deputy Director of the
market committee of the Company and since February 2006,
a Vice President of the Company. From May 2010 to October
2011, he also served as the General Manager of Bengbu
Jinhuangshan Rotogravure Printing Company Limited in
addition to his then existing duties. Mr. Qin holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and Management Administration.
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Mr. PENG Guoyi (%2E1%), aged 52, was appointed as an Executive
Director on 22 July 2015. Mr. Peng has been serving the
Group as the Vice President of the Group and the General
Manager of Shenzhen Kecai Printing Co., Limited* (FYIIT
FENFE AR A R]), one of the subsidiaries of the Company
since he joined the Group in December 2013. Mr. Peng
graduated from Hunan University, specializing in internal
combustion engines, and with status of the national senior
engineer and the member of expert guidance committee.
Before Mr. Peng joined the Group, he worked as a general
manager in Kunming Color Printing Company* (& R3% ENENfl
~a]) from 2007 to 2008. He also worked as a general
manager in Jinjia New Style Packing Material Limited
Company* ($15 ¥R B &AM EHE R A 7)) during the period
from 2008 to 2013. He has more than ten years of
management experience in the printing and packaging
companies.

Ms. LI Li (Z#), aged 44, was appointed as an non-executive
Director on 22 July 2015 Ms. Li is currently a Chairman of the
board of directors of Masterwork Machinery Co., Ltd. (KEK
LR ENFI R RS 1D B R A R)) (“Masterwork” together with its
subsidiaries, the “Master Group”), a company whose issued
shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock
code: 300195). She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Masterwork Group and Tianjin Ming Xuan Investment
Limited Company* (K)EZ# % E BRAF]). Ms. Li is qualified
as a senior economist in the People’s Republic of China. She
has extensive management experience in the printing and
packaging companies.
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Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy (M%), aged 52, was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 4 March 2009.
Mr. Lam is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam has over 25 years of
experience in accounting, banking and finance sectors. Mr.
Lam is the Managing Consultant of Lontreprise Consulting
Limited. Mr. Lam is an associate member of various
professional organisations, namely The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Mr. Lam is currently an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
and Synertone Communication Corporation, both are
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lam received his Master of Professional Accounting and
Master of Science in E-commerce for Executives both from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. LUI Tin Nang (& X8€), aged 58, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 4 March 2009. Mr. Lui
is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Lui has a Bachelor degree in Science from
the University of Leeds, a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Bradford in United
Kingdom and a Postgraduate Diploma in insolvency from
HKICPA. He is a fellow member of the HKICPA (Practicing),
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and The Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. He is also a member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountant, Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in Australia and the Certified Tax
Adviser. He has years of experience in accounting, auditing,
taxation, corporate finance and business advisory. Mr. Lui is
also an Independent Non-Executive Director of China Bio-Med
Regeneration Technology Ltd and Noble House (China)
Holdings Limited, both are companies listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. SIU Man Ho, Simon (&3 %), aged 42, is a practising
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong. He obtained a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in
1996 and is a partner of a law firm, namely Sit, Fung, Kwong &
Shum. Mr. Siu is also a China Appointed Attesting Officer
appointed by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC. His areas of
practice include corporate finance, capital markets, securities,
mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures and general
commercial matters. Mr. Siu is also an independent non-
executive director of Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He also actively participates in charitable and social
services in Hong Kong. He was previously appointed as the
director of Hong Kong Pok Oi Hospital and the member of the
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in Nanning City of GuangXi Province, the PRC. He
is currently acting as the legal adviser for United Hearts Youth
Foundation, VQ Foundation and Hong Kong Taekwondo
Association as well as the school manager of The Association
of Directors and Former Director of Pok Oi Hospital Ltd. Leung
Sing Tak College. Mr. Siu is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. HUANG Wanru, (&), aged 48, was appointed the vice
president of the Group since October 2011. With long working
experience in finance field, Mr. Huang is responsible for the
Group’s financial and management information system. Mr.
Huang joined the Group in May 1998, has been serving in the
Group’s various subsidiary companies and in various roles such
as cost accounting, finance manager, finance controller. Since
March 2008, Mr. Huang was appointed as the financial controller
of the Group. Mr. Huang is currently studying EMBA at Xiamen
University.

Mr. JIANG Xiang Yu (##£51), aged 60, is the General Manager
of BB Jinhuangshan. He joined the Group in 1999 and has
over 15 years of experience in the cigarette package industry.
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Profile of directors and senior management
EEREREEERE

Mr. YAN Feng (BXlI#), aged 58, is the Vice President of the
Group since March 2016 responsible for the Group
infrastructure advancement, equipment management and
investment, policy research and technology management. Mr.
Yan joined the Group in 2000 and has more than 20 years of
experience in the cigarette package industry and he also has
experience in printing of books services. Between May 2000
to April 2001, he served as the design director and marketing
manager in the headquarter of the Group. Between November
2003 to November 2006, he served as Deputy General
Manager of Xiangfan Jinfeihuan Colour Packing Company
Limited (“Xiangfan Jinfeihuan”). Between April 2009 to May
2010, he served as the General Manager of the Group
responsible for the printing of paper products. Between
November 2010 to December 2012, he served as the Deputy
General Manager of CD Goldroc. Between May 2013 to March
2016, he served as General Manager of Xiangfan Jinfeihuan.

Mr. ZHENG Chao (#Bi&), aged 53, is the General Manager of
Zhaotong Antong Package Material Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
the Company. He joined the Group in 1999 and has over 15
years of experience in laminated paper manufacturing industry.
Mr. Zheng holds a college degree.

Mr. CHUNG Tat Hung (£23£5), aged 48, is the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chung had
worked in various companies as finance manager and
accounting manager, and was previously an accountant of an
international accounting firm. Mr. Chung joined the Group in
October 2003. He served as the Finance Manager of the
Group. He left the Group in February 2013 and rejoined in
March 2014. Mr. Chung is a fellow member of HKICPA and a
certified practicing accountant of Australian Society of Certified
Practicing Accountants. Mr. Chung received his Master of
Business Administration jointly offered by the University of
Sydney and the University of New South Wales in Australia in
2002 and Bachelor of Commerce from the Australian National
University in 1991.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 and the future development of the Group’s
business is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 4 to 11 of this annual report. Financial
and business performance analysis is disclosed in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 12
to 18 and note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
Important event affecting the Group since 31 December 2015
is disclosed in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements. The principal risks and uncertainties affecting the
Group’s results and business can be found in notes 4 to 6 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The PRC cigarette industry is closely monitored and controlled
by the PRC government and our customers are concentrated
on a limited number of state-owned cigarette manufacturers.
The Group’s success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise shareholders, regulators,
customers, employees, local communities and business
partners etc. and we have maintained good and strong
business relationship with our customers through joint venture
and other co-operations. During the year ended 31 December,
2015 and up to the date of this annual report, we have
complied with all the relevant rules, laws and regulations in the
PRC that have a significant impact on the Group. Further
details about the environmental and social responsibility are
disclosed in subsequent paragraph in this report.
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Report of the directors

EZEHEE

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 54. A special dividend of HK$0.153 per ordinary
share of the Company amounting to approximately HK$239.9
million has been declared on 12 February 2016 and was paid
in March 2016 (2014: NIL). The Board did not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2016 AGM”) of the
Company, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 2 June 2016 to 3 June 2016 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
2016 AGM, all transfer of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) and
appropriate transfer form(s) must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:00 p.m. on 1 June 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 68.9% of the Group’s
turnover and sales to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 36.5% of the Group’s total revenue. During the
year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 68.8% of the
Group’s total purchases, and the purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier was approximately 43.7% of the
Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
interests in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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Report of the directors

EZEHEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$2.9 billion. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. Details of the movements in
reserves of the Group and the Company are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
shares.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the last
five financial years and of its consolidated assets and liabilities
as at the end of the last five financial years is set out on pages
171 to 172.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Report of the directors

EZEHEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 4 March 2009, the shareholders of the Company had
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”). Key terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarized below:

)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentive or reward to eligible persons for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group or any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest.

Qualifying participants of the Share Option Scheme
include any employee, executive and Non- Executive
Directors, customer or supplier of goods or services to
any member of the Group, consultant, adviser, manager,
officer or entity that provide research, development or
other technological support to the Group or its
member(s).

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is
40,000,000 shares, being 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at 30 March 2009, being the date of
listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange as adjusted by the share subdivision effective
on 11 June 2013, or about 2.55% of the total number of
shares in issue as at 31 December 2015.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company, must
not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting, the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted to any eligible participant
under the Share Option Scheme in the 12 month period
up to and including such further grant must not exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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EZEHEE

(Vi)

(vii)

(viil)

(ix)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption
of the Share Option Scheme, after which period no
further option shall be granted.

A non-refundable consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option. An offer of
grant of an option may be accepted by an eligible person
within the date as specified in the offer letter issued by
the Company, being a date not later than 21 business
days from the date offer is made.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
(which may not expire later than 10 years from the date
of the grant) to be notified by the Board at its sole
discretion. There is no performance target that has to be
achieved before the exercise of any option.

The subscription price must be at least the higher of (1)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (2)
the average of the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (3) the nominal value of a Company’s share.

The Board is entitled at any time within 10 years between
4 March 2009 and 3 March 2019 to offer the grant of an
option to any qualifying participants.

Up to the date of this report, no option under the Share Option
Scheme has been granted by the Board.

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

(vi)

(vil)

(viil)

(ix)
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Report of the directors

EZEHEE

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at the date of this
report are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates provident fund scheme as defined in the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485
of the laws of Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”). The MPF
Scheme was a defined contribution scheme and the assets of
the MPF Scheme were managed by a trustee.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64
and with at least 60 days of service under the employment of
the Group in Hong Kong. Contributions were made by the
Group at 5% based on the staff’s relevant income. The
maximum relevant income for contribution purpose is
HK$30,000 per month. Staff members were entitled to 100%
of the Group’s contributions together with accrued returns
irrespective of their length of service with the Group, but the
benefits were required by law to be preserved until the
retirement age of 65.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme to
fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all
existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries.
The only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the
central pension scheme are to meet the required contributions
under the scheme.

The Group’s cost for the schemes charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
approximately HK$10,725,000 (2014: HK$12,442,000).
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EZEHEE

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David (Chairman)
Mr. Qin Song (Chief Executive Officer and appointed as
Vice-Chairman with effect from 3 December 2015)
Mr. Peng Guoyi
(appointed with effect from 22 July 2015)
Mr. Kiong Chung Yin, Yttox
(resigned with effect from 22 July 2015)

Ms. Li Li

(appointed with effect from 22 July 2015)
Mr. Sean Xing He

(resigned with effect from 22 July 2015)

Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy
Mr. Lui Tin Nang
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon

According to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation at the annual general meeting of
the Company but shall then be eligible for re-election.

Details of the Directors subject to rotation and re-election are
contained in the circular despatched together with this annual
report.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), the Board currently comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, representing more than one-third of
the Board. Pursuant to paragraph 12B of Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules, each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors has confirmed by annual confirmation that he has
complied with the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all three
Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent under
these independence criteria and are capable to effectively
exercise independent judgement.
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Report of the directors

EZEHEE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 19 to 23.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Peng Guoyi and Ms. Li Li have entered into a
service agreement with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from 22 July 2015, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party. Each of Mr. David Cai
and Mr. Qin Song has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 30
March 2015 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party.
Each of Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr.
Siu Man Ho, Simon has renewed their appointment for a fixed
term of three years commencing from 30 March 2015.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Details of the related party transactions entered into during the
year were disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as those disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” below, these
related party transactions either did not constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules or were exempted
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. Save as the
transactions aforementioned, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or the
controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year, and there were no contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Group by the
controlling shareholder of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest
with the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained liability
insurance for Directors and officers throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the following Directors or the chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”)) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO); or
(i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) contained in the Listing Rules:

EERFETHRAEBRERTREA
MEBCEE RS - HEEROSES
HEENRAR

RZEBE—RAF+-_A=+—8 " ' KA2aF
TESZHFETHRABRAR T RE
EE(EERBEBEANESTIEFEHF LB
BIEGIZEXVER) B ARty - HERHHES
ARG AREE ()REESFLRAE
B ([BHRHEED]) EXVEHET RS
DE(BEREES RBEKRAIZZBKRX
BEWEESIRABEENERIOAE) A
MEARRE RERZAHERIORE 3k (i)
RIEFEFH K& B E 50158 352 16z ARZ 1K
Frat & e ez ok B k(i) BIR IR
ETRRFAH LM AR EEHTESRRS
BIEZEST A ([1R2E<F A L) Fg AN A7) K
RETHE RS A R

The Company AAT
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share
Name of Director Capacity shares held Position capital
HEBRITRAE
EEnE &4 BER#E #HA BABEDL
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David Interest of controlled 851,456,892 Long 54.3%
corporation (note 1)
EBEREE Ryt EE R (1) AE
Mr. Qin Song Beneficial owner 15,321,062 Long 1.0%
IR BB A Ra
Mr. Peng Guoyi Beneficial owner 1,000,000 Long 0.1%
TRESRE BB A wRE
Ms. Li Li Beneficial owner 250,551,964 Long 16.0%
FHRL L BB A RE
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Note:

1. 274,325,278 shares are held by Profitcharm Limited and 577,131,614
shares are held by Sinorise International Limited, the entire issued share
capitals of them are wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Cai Xiao Ming,
David.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2015, the following persons (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or
were deemed to have, interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Wi -

1. Blm=BRAFIEHE 274,325,278 IRk 1 RIRZE
B ER D RFASE77,131,614 ARG - W&
EHWEBTRAYHBERLELE2EESH
Ko

TERRNERR HKE

BARREENTBITRAEMA K=
E-RF+T-HA=+—B UTAL(X
FARAMEFREZTRAR)RNAR
AR AR P REA LR REAR
EEFNREEMEXVEE2 %30 HA
AR BB IORE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Name of shareholder Note Capacity shares held Position capital
HEBRITRAE
RREH izt S KREE #®= MO
Profitcharm Limited 1 Beneficial owner 274,325,278 Long 17.5%
BlmARAR ERBEBA )
Sinorise International Limited 2  Beneficial owner 577,131,614 Long 36.8%
REBRFARAQA ERBEBA )
Masterwork Machinery Co., Ltd.. Interest of controlled 250,551,964 Long 16.0%
corporation
RER KRR BRI BR A F Rt EE s 1)
Masterwork Machinery (H.K.) Limited Beneficial owner 250,551,964 Long 16.0%
REBRHD (BB BRLQF ERBEBA 1)
Partners Group Holding AG Beneficial owner 103,555,231 Long 7.0%
Partners Group Holding AG ERBEBA He
Tianjin Dehou Investment Interest of controlled 103,555,231 Long 7.0%
Management Partnership corporation
Tianjin Dehou Investment XS EEE S He

Management Partnership
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Notes:

1. Profitcharm Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Cai Xiao Ming, David.

2. Sinorise International Limited is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability which is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 29 December 2015, Shenzhen Guilian Printing Limited
(“Shenzhen Guilian”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Tianjin Rongcai Technology Co., Ltd (“Tianjin
Rongcai”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of Masterwork
Machinery Co., Ltd., which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company interested in 15.98% of the issued share capital of
the Company and thus a connected person of the Company,
entered into a joint venture agreement to establish an entity of
RO SR T 45 25 g BB A R A Al (Tianjin Rong Lian Hui
Zhi Intelligence Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.) (“Tianjin Rong
Lian”) in the PRC for the purpose of planning, design, research
and development, and sales of intelligent and environmentally-
friendly production among the tobacco packaging industry.
The initial registered capital of Tianjin Rong Lian is
RMB30,000,000 which is contributed as to 60% by Tianjin
Rongcai and 40% by Shenzhen Guilian. Details of the
transactions were set out in the announcement dated 29
December 2015.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Transactions with Xiangfan Cigarette Factory

On 20 March 2014, Xiangyang Jinfeihuan Colour Package
Co., Ltd. (“Xiangyang Jinfeihuan”), which is a member of the
Group, entered into a master sales agreement (the “Master
Sales Agreement”) with EB#IER (Xiangfan Cigarette
Factory) pursuant to which Xiangyang Jinfeihuan shall sell (or
shall procure the Group to sell) and E&HER (Xiangfan
Cigarette Factory) shall buy (or shall procure its subsidiary(ies),
fellow subsidiary(ies) and/or holding company(ies) (together the
“Hubei Tobacco Group”) to buy) the cigarette packages and
related services (the “Package Products”) for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2014. The annual caps of
the Package Products to be supplied by the Group to the
Hubei Tobacco Group under the Master Sales Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2016 are
RMB107 million, RMB131 million and RMB161 million
respectively.

BEE

1. BEARAR/—HNREBELEEEMK
UHBRATF  AEEAEELEERESR ©

2. REBERARIAS/NREBELESEMAK
SNZBRAF AEEAEELEERESR ©
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The actual sales amount incurred under the Master Sales
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately HK$8.22 million.

Pursuant to the Master Sales Agreement, the selling price of
the Package Products shall be agreed upon between the
parties and shall be determined based on normal commercial
terms through arm’s length negotiation or on terms no less
favourable than the terms available to independent third
parties.

Given that EB#¥5/EH (Xiangfan Cigarette Factory) is a
substantial shareholder of Xiangyang Jinfeihuan interested in
20.4% of its share capital, B #ER (Xiangfan Cigarette
Factory) is a connected person to the Company within the
meaning of the Listing Rules and the transactions under the
Master Sales Agreement therefore constituted continuing
connected transactions on the part of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Details of the Master Sales Agreement were set
out in the announcement and the circular of the Company
dated 20 March 2014 and 15 April 2014 respectively.

On 12 August 2015, the Company entered into the master
purchase agreement (the “Master Purchase Agreement”) with
Masterwork Machinery Co., Ltd (“Masterwork Machinery”),
pursuant to which the Company or its subsidiaries will
purchase printing and packaging machineries and related
services from time to time from Masterwork Machinery or its
subsidiaries for a term up to 31 December 2017. The annual
caps for each of the three years ending 31 December 2017
are RMB60 million, RMB60 million and RMB60 million
respectively.

The terms of the Master Purchase Agreement are on normal
commercial terms and are determined by the Group and
Masterwork Machinery on arm’s length basis. The price which
Masterwork Machinery sells the printing and packaging
machineries and related services to the Group under the
Master Purchase Agreement shall be the then market price
based on the price list and terms of each sale to the Group
shall not be less favourable than those on which Masterwork
Machinery offers to its independent customers, taking into
account the quantity and the specifications of the printing and
packaging machineries and related services ordered.
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The actual purchase amount incurred under the Master
Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2015
was approximately HK$6.1 million.

Masterwork Machinery, being a substantial shareholder of the
Company interested in 15.98% of the issued share capital of
the Company, is a connected person under the Listing Rule
and the transactions contemplated under the Master Purchase
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of the Master Purchase Agreement were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 12 August 2015.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save for the “Printing of cigarette packages” and “Purchase of
printing and packing machineries” during the year as shown in
note 47(a) to the consolidated financial statements which
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other transactions
as shown in note 47 are continuing connected transactions
exempted from announcement, reporting, annual review and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the above continuing
connected transactions.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with Master Sales Agreement and Master
Purchase Agreement governing them respectively on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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In addition, the Company has engaged its auditor to report on
the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements. Other than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued unqualified letter
containing the conclusion in respect of the continuing
connected transactions set out above which is in compliance
with the Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
section set out on pages 40 to 51.

The Group believes the importance of balancing the business
growth and the Group’s responsibilities towards the
environment, its employees and the communities in which it
operates. During the year, the Group implemented a number
of trainings and seminar programs, covering environment
protection, work safety and production management.

In 2015, the Group had conducted several fire drills including
fire drills for hazard materials and also conducted daily
occupational health and safety seminar to our employees to
raise their awareness for health and safety to safeguard our
employees, visitors and our contractors.

Relevant senior management had been given training for green
building certification and our ERP system, which enable us to
improve our production efficiency through savings on energy
and reduction in wastes and gas emission in Group’s
production lines through real time monitoring.

Further to protect the environment and reduce cost, the Group
has implemented a number of green initiatives such as a
stringent raw material control policy to strictly monitor the
Group material consumption level with regard to production
wastage. Therefore, the Group was able to achieve paper, ink,
and electro-aluminum foil wastage within the targeted level for
the year.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

During the year, the Company has been offered a four-year
term loan facility (the “Facility”) of HK$340,000,000 from a
local bank in which the Company has undertaken, among
other matters, that Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David (“Mr. Cai”) shall
maintain at least 50% beneficial shareholding interest in the
Company at all times during the life of the banking facility. The
breach of such undertaking may result in the loan immediately
due and repayable. The Facility was used for refinancing the
two syndicate loans granted to the Group in 2012 and 2013
and will be used for general working capital, financing the
capital expenditure and for possible acquisition in the future.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited

Cai Xiao Ming, David
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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OVERVIEW

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating
elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group so as
to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
complied in general with the Code, except code provisions
A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the Code as; (i) Mr. Cai Xiao Ming (the
Chairman of the Board), Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Sean Xing
He were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 5 June 2015 due to their other business
engagement, (i) Mr. Lui Tin Nang, Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon and
Mr. Sean Xing He were unable to attend the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 2 July 2015 due to
their other business engagement; and (i) Mr. Lui Tin Nang, Mr.
Siu Man Ho, Simon and Ms. Li Li were unable to attend the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 7
November 2015 due to their other business engagement.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities
transactions by Directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions for the year ended 31 December 2015.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring the performance of the senior
management. The management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group under the leadership of Chief
Executive Officer. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.
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Currently, the Board comprises seven Directors, including
three Executive Directors namely Mr. David Cai, Mr. Qin Song
and Mr. Peng Guoyi, one Non-Executive Director namely Ms.
Li Li, and three Independent Non-Executive Directors namely
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man
Ho, Simon. There is no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationship among the Directors. The
names and biographical details of the Directors are set in the
section entitled “Profile of Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.

In compliance of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Board
currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors representing more than one-third of the Board.
Pursuant to paragraph 12B of Appendix 16 of the Listing
Rules, each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has
confirmed by annual confirmation that he has complied with
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Directors consider that all three Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent under these
independence criteria and are capable to effectively exercise
independent judgement. Amongst the three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, both Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy and Mr.
Lui Tin Nang have the appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting and related financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”). Further
details of these committees are set out below.
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Four Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2015. Ad-hoc meetings will also be convened if
necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of
Board meeting was sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior
to a regular board meeting. Reasonable notices will be given
to the Directors for ad-hoc board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

All relevant materials were sent to all the Directors relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. All the Directors
have been provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. Details of individual attendance of Directors
are set out in the table on page 48 of this annual report.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term of three years.
All of their appointments are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company.

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors and the Non-
Executive Director were appointed for a term of three years,
and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, Mr. David Cai is the Chairman who
provides leadership to the Board but he would not be involved
in the day-to-day management of the Group’s business. Mr.
Qin Song, was appointed as the Vice- Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and his role is to oversee the
overall management of the Group.

Training for Directors

The Company continuously updates Directors the latest
developments and changes to the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements and provides training to
develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The
Company provides Directors with monthly updates on the
performance, position and prospects of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has prepared a training
record in order to assist the Directors to record the training
that have undertaken.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules and other
corporate governance requirements with written materials.
Individual Director had also attended seminars and/or
conferences or workshops or forums relevant to his profession
and duties as directors. All Directors have provided the
Company with their respective training records in compliance
with Code A.6.5 of the CG Code.
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Below is a summary of the training the Directors had received
during the year:

Name of Directors

EEAR

RER - ESARINEIRENT

Type of trainings
b= Ekid)

Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David
SHERLEA

Mr. Qin Song

IR

Mr. Peng Guoyi
ZHEBRE

Ms. Li Li

FHRIZ L

Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy
MBI T &

Mr. Lui Ting Nang

=P NI

Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon
E P& Tta

A: attending seminars/conferences/workshops/forums

B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy,
environmental protection business or director’s duties and
responsibilities etc.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out
below:

Remuneration bands

A&B
A B

A&B
AKB
A&B
AKB
A&B
ANB

A HEERE g% TR HE

B: MERMELE REEBAEFBRESZH
5 BTRERER

EEREREEEFTH
BE_ZT-AFt_A=+—"HIFES
REEENFHMAR DT

Number of persons

£ FERE AE
Up to HK$1,000,000 10
&% 1,000,000/8 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 2
1,000,001 & T E 2,000,000 7% 7T

Above HK$2,000,001 NIL
2,000,001 T i
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
notes 16 and 17 to the financial statements, respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year ended 31 March 2015, Mr. Chung Tat Hung
(“Mr. Chung”) was the company secretary.

The company secretary of the Company reports to the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer. He is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, the company secretary
has taken not less than 16 hours of relevant professional
training. Mr. Chung has attained not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2015.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee which
consisted of the three Independent Non-Executive Directors
and one Non-Executive Director and Mr. Lui Tin Nang is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are, among other matters, to review and
monitor the financial reporting process and internal control of
the Group, and to report to the Board on matters relating to
the corporate governance as stated in the Code. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee held two
meetings and has reviewed the Company’s financial
statements and the Group’s combined financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015 and for the six months
ended 30 June 2015, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and the Group. The Board
has not taken a different view from that of the Audit Committee
regarding the selections, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditors.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are disclosed
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Company established the Remuneration Committee
pursuant to a resolution of the Directors passed on 4 March
2009. The Remuneration Committee consisted of five
members (including the three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, one Non-Executive Director and Mr. Peng Guoyi, an
Executive Director) and Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy was the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee are, among other matters, to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Executive Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
disclosed on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings and reviewed the remuneration policy, assessed
performance of Executive Directors and approved the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management.

ARRBRBEEN _TTNF=ANBER
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 4 March 2009. The
Nomination Committee consisted of five members (including
the three Independent Non-Executive Directors, one Non-
Executive Director and Mr. Qin Song, an Executive Director)
and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are, among other matters, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board on a regular basis and to make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. According to the board
diversity policy adopted by the Nomination Committee, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service etc. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service etc. The final decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
disclosed on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held three
meetings and discussed and reviewed review the structure,
size and composition of the Board.
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Attendance of meetings

The attendance of each Director at Board meetings, Board
Committees meetings and general meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2015 was as follows:

ERHERE

BRAREWHFEBERAT

Attendance out of number of meetings

BHE-_ZT-—HFt+-_A=+—RHILtEE -
REENEFTEgE EFEZEgERK

ik HEER N
Annual Extraordinary
general general
Audit Remuneration  Nomination meeting meetings
Name of director Board  Committee = Committee = Committee (Note 1) (Note 2)
REBAFAE RREIAE
ESptE 558 ENZEE FMZEEe REZEE (HHaE1) (Hrat2)
Executive Directors
HITEE
Cai Xiao Ming, David (Chairman) 3/4 - - - 0N 0/2
SR (1)
Kiong Chung Yin, Yttox (Note 3) 4/4 - - - il 11
ZRE (H:3)
Qin Song 3/4 - - 33 01 02
P
Peng Guoyi (Note 4) 2/2 - - - - 0N
TEE (Hit4)
Non-Executive Directors
FHITEE
Sean Xing He (Note 3) 3/4 11 11 11 0N 01
Ak (HfzE3)
Li Li (Note 4) 2/2 11 0N 1/2 - 0N
FH(Hita)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUIHITEE
Lam Ying Hung, Andy 3/4 2/2 2/2 3/3 11 2/2
WG
Lui Tin Nang 3/4 2/2 212 3/3 0/ 0/2
PN
Siu Man Ho, Simon 3/4 2/2 2/2 3/3 11 072
R
Notes: BT
1. The annual general meeting was held on 5 June 2015. 1. REBFREN-ZT—RAFARBHET-

2. The extraordinary general meetings were held on 2 July 2015 and 7 2.

November 2015.

3. Resigned with effect from 22 July 2015.

4. Appointed with effect from 22 July 2015.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In the preparation
of financial statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting
policies and statutory requirements have been consistently
complied with. The Board aims to present a clear and
balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.

External Auditors

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the fee paid/
payable to the external auditors of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$4.3 million, all for statutory audit services.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group
and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been
designed to ensure maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication, ensure compliance of applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

After the reviewing the Group’s internal control system, the
Board considers that the internal control system is effective
and adequate for the Group as a whole. The Board further
considers that (i) there was no issue relating to the material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions, of the Group; and (i)
that there were adequate staff with appropriate qualifications
and experience, resources and budget of its accounting and
financial reporting function, and adequate training programmes
have been provided for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Directors’ responsibility on the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015, which were prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards. The reporting responsibilities
of the external auditor of the Company on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company are set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 52 to 53.

GOING CONCERN

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company aims to maintain regular, effective and fair
communication with shareholders and is committed to
conveying important and relevant information to shareholders
on a timely basis. In compliance with the Listing Rules, at least
20 clear business days’ notice will be given to the shareholders
for annual general meeting and at least 10 clear business
days’ notice will be given for all other meetings. All general
meetings of the Company have been conducted by way of poll
and detailed procedures for conducting a poll were explained
at the commencement of the meeting. Results on all general
meetings will be published by way of an announcement
immediately following the relevant general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

In accordance with the Article 58 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, one or more shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionists by the Company.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to be elected as
a Director, the following documents must be validly served to
the Company at the Company’s principal place of business in
Room 01, 12/F, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong: (i) his/her notice of intention to propose a
resolution at the general meeting; and (i) a notice executed by
the nominated candidate of his/her willingness to be appointed
together with his/her information as required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, within the period
commencing on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and ending on the
date falling seven days after the dispatch of the said notice of
the general meeting.

Any Shareholder may direct their enquires and proposal either
by mail to the Board at the Company’s principal place of
business in Room 01, 12/F, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, by fax at (852) 3915 7800 or by
emalil at enquiry@brilliantcircle.com.

Shareholders should direct any questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar: Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
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Independent
Auditor’s Report

BB AR E

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BBREREBERAF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited & Bt {2 i% B B
BRERF] (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 170, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B AR E

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

meiEEkEMEEREHRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z —F—HF+-A=1+—HILtFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —TOF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
P5E FET FHT
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Revenue LR 7 1,494,961 1,703,423
Cost of sales SHE KA (1,032,918)  (1,150,483)
Gross profit EH 462,043 552,940
Other income HgA 9 28,627 19,504
Other gains and losses Hibzs R E1E 10 2,473 642
Selling and distribution expenses  $5& & D X (45,953) (36,820)
Administrative expenses TR XX (101,947) (114,490)
Other expenses HMMA (10,021) (4,955)
Finance costs Eﬂﬁﬁfﬁ 11 (37,371) (46,083)
Share of profit of an associate DG — TRl E R FDA 25 178,625 214,906
Profit before taxation B 5% Bl v A1) 476,476 585,644
Taxation I8 12 (79,796) (104,023)
Profit for the year from continuing  1F &8 & & ¥ IEHFE R R
operations 15 396,680 481,621
Discontinued operations EARIEREEK
(Loss) profit for the year from BRIHEEEBNTE
discontinued operations (E518) % A 13 (6,078) 1,411
Profit for the year FE&HN 390,602 483,032
Other comprehensive expense: HttZ2MEBH X :
ltem that may be reclassified HgngeEmoEEEEN
subsequently to profit or loss: IEA :
Exchange differences arising on HrE 52 REEmMES
translation to presentation =5
currency (156,901) (71,351)
Total comprehensive income FRNEEKEERE
for the year 233,701 411,681
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEBEEREMEEKERE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +=-A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E—FF —E—UF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
By aE FERT FH&T
Profit for the year attributable to: LA A TG E R F :
Owners of the Company KAFEAR A 386,372 453,711
Non-controlling interests FEFE RS I A 4,230 29,321
390,602 483,032
Total comprehensive income INTFATEEZEREREE -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NECIEZ DN 232,067 386,229
Non-controlling interests e AR HE A 1,634 25,452
233,701 411,681
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share BREF 18
From continuing and discontinued 3K B 5 & &4 &
operations ERIEREET
Basic HIK 0.25 0.30
From continuing operations REFELEEER
Basic HAK 0.26 0.30

2015 EERE ST

BB AR A A
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

e PR SRR

At 31 December 2015 R=E—FHF+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
—F-HF —TWF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
ibE=s FET FET
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R MR 20 806,049 688,597
Prepaid lease payments TENHERIE 21 77,246 84,184
Investment properties A 22 185,636 65,648
Goodwill EES 23 1,061,335 1,096,481
Intangible assets B AE 24 283,503 324,977
Interest in an associate A — B E A R R R 25 643,224 715,766
Interest in a joint venture n—Ea **{E% BT 26 8,644 -
Long-term receivables KHifE H& FIE 27 15,720 -
Deposits for property, plant and ,TMZJ% &R %E{ e =EN]
equipment MR % 21,966 6,149
3,103,323 2,981,802
Current Assets REEE
Inventories PENTY 28 116,504 119,832
Prepaid lease payments AT ERIE 21 2,092 2,220
Trade and bills receivables B S REWGIE K R Hﬁlz:%fg 29 783,185 740,662
Other receivables, prepayments  E {th flE L Fk 1B - TE{T K18
and deposits Kiz& 30 54,747 33,860
Amount due from a shareholder — JEUY —Z IR R I8 31 3,449 -
Tax recoverable A] Uz e % 18 3,164 =
Pledged bank deposits BEEMRITER 32 2,173 85,750
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 32 299,771 378,985
1,265,085 1,361,309
Assets classified as held for sale D lEAEEHELE 14 - 140,050
1,265,085 1,501,359
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables B SN IBERENER 33 282,158 191,339
Other payables and accruals Hip e IB L EETE B 34 120,231 208,169
Amounts due to non-controling  FE{ IEIZ AR AE 25 X IB
interests 31 - 24,741
Bank borrowings RITIEE 35 536,013 740,662
Income tax payable JERT TS AR 54,927 62,057
993,329 1,226,968
Liabilities directly associated with B 58 BIFEGEEE
assets classified as held for sale ﬁ BEEBBMONAE 14 - 4,694
993,329 1,231,662
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRRER

At 31 December 2015 R=—E—HFE+-_A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-RF —TWF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
ibE=s FET FHIT
Net Current Assets REEESHE 271,756 269,697
Total Assets less Current REERRBEE
Liabilities 3,375,079 3,251,499
Non-current Liabilities FRBEME
Government grants BT 2 36 36,164 36,314
Bank borrowings RITIEE 35 277,660 95,400
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEAE 37 78,141 92,266
391,965 223,980
Net assets EEZFE 2,983,114 3,027,519
Capital and Reserves EXRK#EE
Share capital R AN 38 7,839 7,442
Share premium and reserves R (B K 2,922,621 2,961,426
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ARNAE A A EIEER
the Company 2,930,460 2,968,868
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR ME 2 52,654 58,651
Total Equity e 2,983,114 3,027,519

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 170
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 24 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David

£ 5
DIRECTOR
EF

FHABEFI7T0BENGZEVERRE D
TE-RFZAtHBEEESHER

R W MIATRERERE

Mr. Qin Song
E/ N
DIRECTOR
EF

2015F FERE BHIERBBERAH
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE2 - —HAF +-A=1+—HILtFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARERAEE
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other  Dividend Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves  reserves reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RA  RGEE EERE HtRG RERE EIRE  REEH @5 FERER ERAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000
T THL Titn Tian T THL Fin Tar Thr ThAL
(Note a) (Note b)
(Mia)  (Mztn)
At January 2014 etk
—-R-H 7,442 4,805,003 107,608 (3,001,899) 135,897 230,757 352,506 2,637,313 258,024 2,895,337
Profit for the year EEEF - - - - - - 483711 453711 20321 483032
Other comprehensive FREMZERY
expense for the year - - - - - (67,482) - (67,482) 3,869 (71,351)
Total comprehensive FR2ERR)
(expense) income lhgarit]
for the year - - - - - (67,482) 453,711 386,229 25,452 411,681
Acquisitions of subsicliaries  YtBEH B/ 7]
(Note 39) (Fz£39) - = - 81223 = = - 8123 (18362 (82,400)
Final dividend paid for YN-B-=F
2013 (Note 19) RERE (F219) . - . - (135,807 - - (35807 (61202 (197,099)
Transfer B - - 12,842 16,223 - - (29,085) - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—RE
+-A=+-H 7,442 4,805,003 120,450 (2,904,453 - 163,275 777,151 2,968,868 58,661 3,027,519
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - 386372 386372 4230 390,602
Other comprehensive FREMZERS
expense for the year - - - - - (154,309) - (154,305 (2,596)  (156,901)
Total comprenensive FR2E(FY)
(expense) income Wetas
for the year - - - - - (154,305) 386,372 232,067 1,634 233,701
Ordinary shares issued by BB E ST
share placing (Note 38) &3 (i3 38) 397 134610 = = = = - 135007 - 135,007
Transaction costs B ERES
attributable to issue of KA
new ordinary shares - (2,700) - - - - - (2,700) - (2,700)
Release of exchange HERBARE
reserve upon disposal of [0 i il
subsidiaries - . . - - 3090 - (309%0) - B0
Return of capital to mIHERER
non-controling interests ~ REEAR - - - 119 - - - 119 (119 -
Dividends recognised as RADKARE
distrioution (Note 19) (FzE19) - - = = = - [(399811) (399811) (7512 (407,329)
Transfer B - - 39,311 - - - (39,311 - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1E
+=R=1-H 7839 4936913 159,761 (2,904,334) - 5830 724,401 2,930,460 52,654 2,983,114
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

Notes:

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain statutory reserves. Appropriation
to such reserve is made out of profit after taxation as reflected in the
statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts
and allocation basis are decided by its board of directors annually. The
appropriation to statutory surplus reserve may cease if the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’
registered capital. The statutory reserves can be used to make up prior
year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by
means of capitalisation issue.

Other reserves comprised (i) the merger reserve of HK$79,000 which
arose from the difference between the nominal value and premium of
shares of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange thereof; (i) issue of 480,000,000
shares of the Company with fair value of HK$4,267,200,000 at 14 April
2011 to Mr. Tsoi Tak, the former controlling shareholder of the
Company in exchange of its entire equity interests in Brilliant Circle
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Brilliant Circle Holdings
International Limited) which were acquired by Mr. Tsoi Tak, that former
controlling shareholder at 10 September 2009 using cash and certain
listed shares held by him with fair value of HK$1,781,817,000 in
aggregate; (i) an amount of HK$516,437,000 resulting from the
acquisition of additional equity interests in Bengbu Jinhuangshan
Rotogravure Printing Company Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company; (iv) an amount of HK$81,223,000 resulting from the
acquisition of additional equity interests in Giant Sino Investments
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in December
2014 and (v) an amount of HK$119,000 resulting from the change of
equity interests of non-controlling shareholders from 0.69% to 0.51% in
Shenzhen Kecai Printing Company Limited in November 2015.

G

REBEHEARKMBE(HE D) EENERE
BRIERMATE - RRROTEMEARE
RIDEEFE - D EEZRHEEOBFTEH
B0 P B 1x B0 TE B TS $R 3R A IR AR AR A o
N MEREIEEENSFHEEEER
E e WEERBREEBHEBEEDTRNEA
AL & A 50% » B ] AN H 25 E 7
o RERB A RERM L —FEAEE (1
B) TAEBEMMEBITERAER -

HEMREESE)SHFEHT9,0008 T - HE
F AR B ARG/ EE &R E Y
RARRFTEITRER RIS N EEN =
(AR RAR -_ZE——FMA+TB AN
A7) AT IR AR R A2 15 S 4R 24 1T #9 480,000,000
BB - DA (BB A 4,267,200,00058 7T LA
BEAESLEMRESHERITRAERA
AI(ATFE BB R AR AR ) 2 S ARAE -
ZAERRER-ZZEZTAFAATANES
REMBFEMNE T a5 Ui & B2 20
1 mAEEAREEALA1,781,817,000/%8
TL s (i ARR —MIEEEMB AR EER
S E I MARENRIA R A R W REINE A RE 25 T
EE B RIE516,437,0008 T RV =
—E+ - AKBART —HIEE2EHER
7] Giant Sino Investments Limited &9 £8 41 f&% 7K
HE 25 TS 4 B FKIE 81,223,00058 7T ¢ K (V)R
ZE—RF+— AEERBRENFRYITRY
EN75 A BR A A1 ) A% # B3 0.69% & 5 0.51% AT
EALE 119,000 TT

20155 FEHE EMEREBRERAIF
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Consolidated Statement of

Cash Flows
e RERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &#Z - F—HF+-A=1+—HItFE

2015 2014
—F-HF —FTWF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHBT FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Profit before taxation R F5 Bl g A 470,398 586,304
Adjustments for: FHEE -
Share of profit of an associate o — MBS & R B A (178,625) (214,906)
Finance costs BB KA 37,371 46,419
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB MERETE
equipment 63,406 92,151
Release of prepaid lease payments FRBRTB N HE IR 2,185 2,234
Depreciation of investment properties & EWEITE 5,417 3,287
Amortisation of intangible assets BT EE 45,403 45,249
Interest income B WA (6,463) (7,484)
Interest income on long-term R A E W IR R A B A
receivables (3,152) -
Government grants for acquisition of ~ UKEEYI - R REHER
property, plant and equipment BB E (553) 377)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE - BB MEENWES
and equipment (2,525) (173)
Recognition of write-down on T R 38 17 55 TURK
obsolete inventories 927 405
Recognition of impairment on HERE 5 RN IRERIE
trade receivables - 2,466
Recognition of impairment on R R EWFIERE
long-term receivables 4,990 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENEARER 6,078 -
Operating cash flows before movements &3& & ¢ & F Al AY4E 2
in working capital XGREnE 444,857 555,575
(Increase) decrease in inventories =& GEm)md (4,658) 78,043
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 R GRIE K B EIE
bills receivables (3H0) w (88,979) 67,240
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, E b fEUGRIE « TERFRIE &
prepayments and deposits me R (M) 7,786 (2,290)
Increase in amount due from JE U — 2 A% SR FRIEHE AN
a shareholder (3,604) -
Increase (decrease) in trade and B S RENFIARENEE
bills payables 0 (R A>) 104,355 (62,008)
Increase (decrease) in other payables HipENRIE L ESTE A
and accruals A0 (i) 8,774 (36,868)
Cash generated from operations KEELES 468,531 599,692
Income taxes paid EATEH (98,066) (107,176)
Interest paid EAHLE (37,954) (45,040)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING KRETHELRSFE
ACTIVITIES 332,511 447,476
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E—-FE —T—F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
ibE=s FHBT FHIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest received B 2 6,463 7,484
Deposit paid for and purchases of HEEVE  HEK
property, plant and equipment R\ & (172,938) (143,620)
Purchases of investment properties WHEIR B (402) -
Purchases of licenses and franchises U 3 k% AR & B &2 (9,399) -
Dividend received from an associate Sl /NE]
Y HR AR B 209,784 197,137
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE&
plant and equipment BURIECE e 3,175 19,682
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 212 4R 1T 17 K 82,936 5,526
Placement of pledged bank deposits ~ FME IR TIFER (776) (83,523)
Government grants received for 2 AU B 3
acquisition of property, plant and = N i HY
equipment BB & 3,686 18,840
Payment for the acquisition of BAEFEFUEE
subsidiaries in prior year LR EERNGIEDE 39 (82,400) -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W B B B8 2 =) 39 - 1,797
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMTEB A alH)
Fri§sxI1A 40 53,375 =
Acquisition of assets through ERKE—FEHBAR
acquisition of a subsidiary WEEE E 41 (205,900) -
Acquisition of investment in WE—RHaEER
a joint venture wE (8,825) -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REEE (£ER)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES EEREFE (121,221) 23,323
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & T B
New bank loans raised, net of FIGIRITE R - Mk
transaction cost of HK$2,210,000 X % &R 2,210,000
(2014: HK$1,118,000) BT (ZE—HF -
1,118,000 7T) 1,387,422 476,246
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (1,394,287) (742,145)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRMD TS EIA 132,307 -
Repayment to non-controlling BETHB AR
interests of subsidiaries FEIEAR S (22,814) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling AR B T IEIE R A A
interests (7,512) (50,760)
Dividends paid EfTIRE (399,811) (135,897)

2015F FERE BHIERBBERAH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METBHFERARESERE
ACTIVITIES (304,695) (452,556)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE INCASH B4 RREZEIER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R A) B nF &R (93,405) 18,243
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—EB—HWEER
1 JANUARY H&EEER 406,290 414,830
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [& & & B)fh 5 & (13,114) (26,783)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RA+=—HBA=+—HH
31 DECEMBER, REPRESENTED BY HB4¢RBELZEER -
BANK BALANCES AND CASH RRBITEBRES 299,771 406,290
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Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z - —HAF+-A=+—HItFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 11 November 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Cai Xiao
Ming, David (the “Controlling Shareholder”). The address
of the registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
is Room 3104-5, 31/F, Universal Trade Centre, 3-5
Arbuthnot Road, Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are engaged
in provision of the printing of cigarette package,
manufacturing of laminated papers, printing of packages
and decoration matters, research and development on
printing technology, wholesale, import and export of the
packaging products and other related services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK$”) and the Company’s functional
currency is Renminbi (“RMB”) that mainly influences the
operation of the Group’s significant entities.

1.

—REH
RRARRZ_ZEZENF+—H+—H
RHASEEIMKIAERRER
NA HBROREBEEMERXIME
PRAB (BT EMR BT - H&
s REER L E(ERR
R]) e RAFIMGEMPFEREMU R
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands + 3 Z & 2t Bh {7 A
BEAPRDEHBISHIRER L
3131045 o

RRABBREEBR AR > KRR K
Hf@Ar (MBI AKEDHNEE
EBRRHEEEREHR  RiEE
B BREENR m@ENR -~ E1R
R E R - BREMOILE
K QAR B A FARE 575 o

mAMBmRABT(BITDZS
MARBNINEEE SHAKEE
ZERZERERFVENARE(A
R#%1) -

2015F FERE BHIERBBERAH

63



64

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
nv_\éﬁl\ji%ﬁi B{q.E‘I

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
HKAS 19 Contributions

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED  Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
:-v_\éﬂji%iﬁgélzﬁﬂ

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +=-A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. A REEBITEBHER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA(EFEEBNBREZEL )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (4&)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet EEMGESREXNHFHIT REIERT
effective BN KREEL
The Group has not early applied the following new and NEFBTEIEEER T 2 8BMHE
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet MARE N M EIEE] T BT
effective: ELER]
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ BB TSR #E A SET A
FE O
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts? BRI E LR BEEIRICERE 2
FE145
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BB BREER BEAHWA
Customers' F155%
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in EB B A YER| L B A e 7
Joint Operations® FURUETA)  EsmEdt
BRIE s
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative? BB @zHER| WEEET £
F15 (BETAR)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of ERA@ERE 165 BEWERE
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation? LEBe | HE A E X
8385k (85T A) it
Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs EB SR EER| —E——FF
2012-2014 Cycle® (BETA) —E—E
FEHAE A
RS 4R
B S M
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants® EHESTELF 165 BE: ERR
and HKAS 41 REAGTER ek
F 415 (BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial EHh SR B B TE R
Statements® F 275 (IBETA) PR ERES
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between BB A 2R 188 % B H B
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint F10REEB EYNEIEIEES
Venture* SHHAERIZE 28 57 EE
(fBETA) WEEHE
PgEE*
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying the EAEB R RS AR HEEE
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception® F105% - HEH RiRE AR
BREERE 125 WBIIMERS
REB LR
285 (15T A)
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 1 R N\F—A—Hx(ZBRABHE
[ EPRS Ak
2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on 2 R-TEBE—RNE—A—BXZERBHNE
or after 1 January 2016 BF EEBMBEREER M BRI EK
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 3 R-EBE—RNFE—H—Hal 2 BFRBRNF
& HARE A 3k
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 4 MEFTE HHsk 22 MR EE R A%
determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
n‘/_\éﬁl\jﬁ%iﬁ% MTJ'-ELI

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of new and revised standards, amendments
or interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQO”).

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap 622) (“new CQO”) regarding preparation of
accounts and directors’ reports and audits became
effective for the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2015. Further, the disclosure requirements set
out in the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have
been amended with reference to the new CO and to
streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based
on the new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing
Rules but not under the new CO or amended Listing
Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
n‘l_\éﬂjﬁ%iﬁ%mqﬂ

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the carrying amount
of the net assets attributable to the change in interests by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposal of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS39,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value or,
when applicable, on the basis specified in HKFRSs.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, with the corresponding gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets
does not constitute a business, the Group shall identify
and recognise the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. The cost of the group shall be
allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXRETHE#E)
(continued)
Goodwill (continued) EE(E)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described below.

Interest in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

BEESERENRCELEUEE
FHETHENR IR BHRBR
BAAREEHRBEREAEMET
RAERIE - RS AR RKBE
ERREE  REmEHRAZED
AR ENReELEMSETHE
AR WREELEEM AT KEE
BAONZEMWEREE kT
DERERBRE - BRZEMED R
MEREmEREE  ARAZEM
NEEERME/ELE  KLLOIH
B EMAEMEE - BB EM
HMEBEEERZRNEDZAER B
ZHRERB TR ERIZMERE -

REEHRBEReELEME  BmE
MEE SRR L ERTAEERR

SR -

AR — RS A R A
AENBERRT -

R-—EBEQXAR-—BEELEN
R

a2 RRNEAREHEEERY
EIMNER  EAFERSEERX
RERNBINM T R EEBERIRTE DN
B R EENAFEZFRR
FOF22 il sl SR ]

BELFRE-BARTE Y2k
HELRZEFENRTOTBILYE S
LSRBEEEFERGEN - KR
HERERRANOEHRELHAMN
HKBEZS - KREZEHEERRE
HERKARZHERENZ T EL
—HRBRERFAE -

2015F FERE BHIERBBERAH

73



74

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\/E\IE\j-ﬁ%ﬁ%Mq-ELI

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
that associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Interest in an associate and a joint venture

3.
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The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine FEREB e ERIE 395 M EK

whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or
a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to
sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the EemMEER  BIKEEIKEHAQ
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date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The
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discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest BERTEBELNFIEELELD

and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same
basis as would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
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disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interest in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
its former subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment,
in an associate or joint venture, the investment or the
portion of the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of
the equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale. Any retained portion of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture that has not
been classified as held for sale continues to be
accounted for using the equity method. The Group
discontinues the use of the equity method at the time of
disposal when the disposal results in the Group losing
significant influence over the associate or joint control
over the joint venture.

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for
any retained interest in the associate or joint venture in
accordance with HKAS 39 unless the retained interest
continues to be an associate or a joint venture, in which
case the Group uses the equity method (see the
accounting policy regarding investments in associates
and joint ventures above).

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ =%

—RFET-_A=1+T—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sale of cigarette packages and
manufacture of laminated papers is recognised when
goods are delivered and titles have passed. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting
the above criteria for revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under
current liabilities.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

3. EXSFEE
Wy 25 HE SR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. REaHEER

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued) WHEER (&)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when M5 & ,}@‘E ﬂ FO R RARER K
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Wame e ErtE AemE
Group and the amount of income can be measured E R F 5\14&)\}1\ SHER o A B Hﬁz)\

reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial assets to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue

T2RAEERE LER BRI X
RS EEERG ﬁ%ﬁﬂ?ﬁ&i
Bl A EE TR RT F HA M AT OR R P MRERER
TEBRTREZEERTFERN
AREDSHE ©
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from operating leases is described in the accounting AR R TXEBHEENEETHR
policy for leasing below. WL o

Leasing HE

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the MEMHETSFEMEESAERR
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and EOomEREAFEA - AIHAEDE
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are == é{? c FTEEMBEESEA
classified as operating leases. KERE

The Group as lessor AEEEREBEA

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are RIE R E S e WAAE ARIBIZAK

recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 H{Z2 =%

The Group as lessee (continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy on
borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EREFEBE

(continued)

Foreign currencies IR E

In preparing the financial statements of each individual EHRHEERERE LR ISHmKRE -

group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
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exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates %j}ﬂ? CRIBAR B HEARBITIE R
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, cFTEAMENZF (A )R
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions {m 2HE WS ERILAE N F#H1E
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are TLMZE”LIE%J(%{:.\ BB IEE

recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. RKETEER
(continued)
Taxation FiiE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
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deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the N EERBENXEAF
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the EUT%&E;{J\EAZ’;/%E&ET N

initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwiill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 H{Z2 =%

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the
amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided during
the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences
when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purpose).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXRSTHERM#E)
(continued)

Intangible assets BR&EE

Intangible assets acquired separately BERWENELEE

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined on a
weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including long-term receivables,
trade and bills receivables, other receivables, amount due
from a shareholder, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on loans and
receivables below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the loans and
receivables, the estimated future cash flows of the loans
and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 90 days,
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

The carrying amount of loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all loans and
receivables with the exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When trade receivables are considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
other payables, amounts due to non-controlling interests
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

3.

BAEHBRE ()

SRMIA(E)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments ctHMABERERTIA(A)
(continued)
Effective interest method FER R £

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ =%

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line
method, at the rates ranging from 3% to 30% per annum.
The estimated useful lives that the Group depreciates the
property, plant and equipment reflect the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of the assets.
Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives. Periodic review could result in a change in useful
lives and therefore depreciation and impairment losses in
future years.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment is HK$806,049,000 (2014:
HK$688,597,000). Details of the useful lives of the
property, plant and equipment are disclosed in note 20.
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A BB RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ =%

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, an impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of goodwill
is HK$1,061,335,000 (2014: HK$1,096,481,000) and no
impairment loss was recognised during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014. Details of the recoverable
amount calculated in note 23.

Estimated impairment loss of trade receivables
When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is HK$700,971,000 (2014:
carrying amount of HK$712,085,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ =%

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated write-down of inventory

The Group writes down inventories for obsolescence
based on an assessment of the net realisable value of
inventories. Write-downs are applied to inventories where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net
realisable value is lower than the cost of inventories. The
identification of obsolete inventories requires the use of
judgment and estimates on the conditions and usefulness
of the inventories. The amount of write-down would be
changed as a result of the changes in current market
conditions subsequently.

The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December
2015 is approximately HK$116,504,000 (2014:
HK$119,832,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank borrowings, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

a.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. T@MI A
Categories of financial instruments a. SRMIANEH
2015 2014
—E-HfF —ZT—NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FHIT
Financial assets cREE
Loans and receivables (including & & EWZE (BEES
cash and cash equivalents) NR&FHEIER) 1,155,998 1,230,810
Financial liabilities TREE
Amortised cost BRI 1,166,039 1,193,667

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
long-term receivables, trade and bills receivables,
other receivables, amount due from a shareholder,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and bills payables, other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling interests and bank
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

The functional currencies of the Group’s
principal subsidiaries are either HK$ or RMB.
While most of the Group’s operations are
transacted in the functional currency of the
respective group entities, the Group
undertakes certain transactions denominated
in foreign currencies. The Group currently does
not have hedging policy in respect of the
foreign currency risk. However, the
management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign

6.

SRTI A %)
b. SREAKREENEERBEK(E)

W%
(i)

=N

Bz
AEETENBRRNI
EEEREBTHARE -
HRANEEAE D RB A
EEEERNEERE
TR% AEETETE
TUSNESHERNR 5 ° &K
SEB AL ERBINER
BEVERER - R &
2 8 A% & v B OB S EE R
% WK NP EREEY
HEAIMNERR

REE IR - AEEAS

currency denominated monetary assets and B ENEBEERER
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting BERBDEEOT
date are as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Assets BE
HKS ABIT 77,524 77,947
Liabilities =R
HK$ BT 567,172 648,022
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A BB RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency
of HK$.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 6% (2014: 3%) increase and
decrease in the RMB against HKS, respectively.
6% (2014: 3%) sensitivity rate represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 6% (2014
3%) change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes bank balances,
receivables or payables and bank borrowings
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where
RMB strengthens against HK$. For a 6%
(2014: 3%) weakening of RMB against the
HK$, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit.

6. SRMTA)
b. SREKREEMNEERNEE)

mSmE(E)

(i)

BHER ()

BBE AT
AEEE BRI ALY
Al -

TERFIIAREL AT
BENMEER(ZZT—NO
F:3%) MBERT » K&
EHFRREDN - BRAE
b R6%( = F — I £ -
3%) KR EEEHHMNEE
KA F B E IR o
BREE DT EBIELAINE
FTEMAEEEREE -
W HRERAREE% (ZF
— DU : 3%) HINGE [E K &
PABRHERE HRAES
MEBRRITERS - UK
Bk A RERRITEER
(AThBe B AN B
EHE) » THESHRTAR
WS BT ER  BREE
i ) = g0 o fim AR
HABTRES(ZT—NO
F:3%) HEHRMNEBEZF
BIARFZ -

2015 2014
—EB-HF —TWF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Profit for the year FEER
HK$ PETT 22,034 12,827

Note: This is mainly attributable to the net exposure to
outstanding bank balances, receivables, payables
and bank borrowings in HK$ at end of the reporting
period.

PicE R R E 2R E ®E S
KRB TFHER R AEF R
TR ER - BUGROR - FEfY
RIBERIRITEE -

2015F FERE BHIERBBERAH
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A BB ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

b.

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances and bank borrowings (see notes 32
and 35 respectively). It is the Group’s policy to
keep its bank borrowings at floating rate of
interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate arising from the Group’s HK$
denominated bank borrowings.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its corresponding fixed-rate pledged
bank deposits, amounts due to non-controlling
interests and bank borrowings amounting to
HK$2,173,000 (2014: HK$85,750,000), nil (2014:
HK$24,741,000) and HK$123,486,000 (2014:
HK$143,508,000) respectively. The management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates on variable-rate bank borrowings. The
analysis is prepared assuming the variable-rate
bank borrowings outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. As the management considers the
exposure to interest rate risk in relation to bank
balances is insignificant due to the low level of
bank interest rate, bank balances are excluded
from sensitivity analysis. A 100 basis points
(2014: 100 basis points) increase or decrease
is used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ =%

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
If interest rates had been 100 basis points
(2014: 100 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2015 would decrease/increase by
HK$5,176,000 (2014: decrease/increase by
HK$5,194,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowings.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies or
state-owned banks located in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

—RFEFT-A=1+—HLEE

6. ERMI A%

b.

20155 EERE B

TREREENBEERBE(E)

miEE (&)

(i) FIFERE(E)
BEE DT (B)
ﬁ%V?Pbm/mdwoo
A (ZZ—MmF : 10018
EE) ﬁ%ﬁﬁmm%ﬁ

# g AIAREEHEC
T-—hAF+-A=+—H
LIEFE BB BL1& %= TR
A /18 915,176,000 T
—ZT—PUF R 1
5,194,000 7T) * T E XK
BAEEZERITEER
A AR o

FER B
RZE—RF+ZHA=+—
A AEBEFAEREEER
R RARSE T REBITAEMT
BYRAEEERYEEER T
KB ERE ISR & Pt &Y
BEHERRCHEENKRAE °

EREEERR  KA&HE
Eﬁéaéﬂ i%ﬁﬁag
EEERSE EEFHREMD
EERF - NERRIURETT
BWEBHRER - B K&
B 70 %% S 5 B R T & 22 (@ R
B AU Bl & 58 - ARER 3L
ANAJ Y Al & BT IR R SRR (B
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A BB ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 25%
(2014: 32%) and 72% (2014: 74%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the printing of cigarettes
packages segment. The Group is also exposed to
the concentration on geographic segment of the
PRC. At 31 December 2015, approximately 95%
(2014: 100%) of the Group’s trade and other
receivables are arising from counterparties whose
principal place of operations is the PRC.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2015, the
Group has available unutilised bank borrowings
facilities of approximately HK$466,408,000 (2014:
HK$255,834,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

b.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

~ e R AR A

Forthe year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—AF +=-A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ERMITH%E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. *HMEAMEENEHERBK(EZ)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRMR(E)
The table includes both interest and principal cash 2% BBEEMNBEEKESRS G
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating o W F Bim A ZE R XK - Bl
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from ﬂi?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁ)ﬂ e AR A A
interest rate at the end of the reporting period. KRAEHEF -
Liquidity tables MEBET R
Weighted
average On demand Total
interest or less Over undiscounted  Carrying
rate thaniyear  1-2years 2years cashflows  amounts
Mg REXS ARRE

FIRE R -EWMFR  BEMF  REAR REE
%  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
% TR TiEn TR TiEn TR

2015 “E-1F
Non-derivative financial ¥#i44RE%E
liabilities
Trade and bills payables & 358
RENZ - 282,158 - - 282158 282,158
Other payables AR A - 70,208 - - 70,208 70,208
Bank borrowings RITEE
— floating rate - FEH % 370 438055 123432 175148 736635 690,187
— fixed rate - EEH= 4.94 129,580 - - 129,580 123,486
920,001 123,432 175,148  1,218581 1,166,039
2014 —E-nE
Non-derivative financial ¥#i44REE
liabilities
Trade and bills payables & 508
RENZ - 191,339 - - 191,339 191,339
Other payables B it ERFIR - 141,525 - - M55 141505
Amounts due to BRI ER DT
non-controlling interests = 24,141 = = 24,741 24,741
Bank borrowings BITEE
— floating rate - FBHE 3.96 620,829 103,114 - 723,943 692,554
— fixed rate - EEH% 6.12 162,294 - - 162,294 143,508

1,130,728 103,114

1,233,842 1,193,667
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A BB ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. SRIITA#E)

c. Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

7. REVENUE 7.

Revenue represents revenue arising on sale of cigarette
packages and laminated papers for the year. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue for the year from continuing
operations is as follows:

C.

AREE

TRHEENEHABENAAE

BNRERTRBEESREDN
NAREBRAETE °

RNAREERE  REBHEKA
ARG BRENEHEE
kemaENREEREQAR
BEMRE

=E
BEERFNRETERRERES
L7 M aE - A R

LEBWRAIIT
2015 2014
—EB-HF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Printing of cigarette packages Nl & 12 B 5
Manufacturing of laminated papers ~ BUEE S 4K

1,446,422 1,659,115
48,539 44,308

1,494,961 1,703,423
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods delivered or services provided. No operating
segments identified by the chief operating decision maker
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments currently
are (i) printing of cigarette packages and (i) manufacturing
of laminated papers. The CODM considered the Group
has two operating and reportable segments which are
based on the internal organisation and reporting
structure. This is the basis upon which the Group is
organised.

The provision of printing of books services was
discontinued in the last year. The segment information
reported below does not include any amounts for this
discontinued operation, which is described in more detail
in note 13.

7 EHER

RO RER KRG D FEEE MR
NRARTES  AEXEBLEREKE
[XEBZEEBRREZEDEZRER &
PR P R A P dm Sk P ER AR TS SR A
AEEY ECEETBELERKE
Bl RS EEA MR A HRE

7 EB

AREBHE S M A E 28 B A ()
HREERE  MiBHEEAMRE
e TBEEERRERRAKESR
MEZ S LA mEDE - HIREA
AL AR EE D o WWHARE
B AE AR Ay ELE o

REZEORRECVREFRIEE
Zoe NNFIERDIBERTTBIE
ZERIEEEBNIR ST 18
RS R sE135F -

2015F FERE BHIERBBERAH
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A BB ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results from continuing operations by reportable and

operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2015

8. DIEFRE)
R N E T
PATF 75 7% 82 [ 3% ] 3 25 T 48 4 5 &6
B OB ERLERWAREED
o

BE_Z-AF+-A=1t—-HL

FE
Printing Manufacturing
of cigarette of laminated
packages papers Total
BREEER BEREHE st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT THERT
Segment revenue for continuing A& 256 5 A
operations 1,446,422 48,539 1,494,961
Segment profit for continuing B & EHH D AT
operations 448,821 12,518 461,339
Unallocated — other income and &2 — E4 AA KR E
other gains and losses fib ez R 518 31,100
Unallocated expenses AOEERXY (157,217)
Finance costs BE R A (37,371)
Share of profit of an associate 7 —FEIEE & A BRI A 178,625
Profit before taxation (continuing K1 Aij | (B K&
operations) 476,476

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED  Annual Report 2015
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A BB RARMIEE

Forthe year ended 31 December 2015 BE - —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. oEERE)

Segment revenues and results (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE-Z— IEF+ A=t+—-H1L

FE
Printing Manufacturing
of cigarette of laminated
packages papers Total
DREZEE SUER AW Bt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTAET FET
Segment revenue for continuing 13 B4 £ TR D 2
operations 1,659,115 44,308 1,703,423
Segment profit for continuing 15 485 ST MK S e AT
operations 552,655 8,714 561,369
Unallocated — other income and R — EA A R E
other gains and losses b Yz &Eﬁﬁ 20,146
Unallocated expenses ANEERX (164,694)
Finance costs Eﬂ BRI (46,083)
Share of profit of an associate 71 —fEHEE A &)@ F 214,906
Profit before taxation (continuing B Fi AR (HERLER)
operations) 585,644
The accounting policies of the operating segments are Ky E ) ST BUR BT FE 3 PTEL AN
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described SR BEAR -

in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of corporate management
expenses, directors’ emoluments, share of profit of
an associate, finance costs, income tax expenses,
unallocated income, other gains and losses, and
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

All of the segment revenue reported above is from
external customers.

A*meﬂ B9 AT B EUR ) -
PERAFIEERAY EEE @H
45 MEtE A RRA - REA
TEMAX - RO A -« Hi
¥&)§ﬂ§ ARAZ - T EIR
AREEKRRTERMEELEREE
EFHFEAR ©

2T E D U A K 5 S
a‘BE)E

2015FFERE BHITRBEBRERAD
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A BB ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DHER (&
Segment assets and liabilities WAl é?&ﬁ{;
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AT RAEBIRA HERKEE D E
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: ZIPoEENBEDNT :
Segment assets DEEE
2015 2014
—EB-HF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Printing of cigarette packages EN &8 B 2 1,569,605 1,507,732
Manufacturing of laminated papers — Rz S 4K 36,660 35,505
Total segment assets DESEEAE 1,606,265 1,543,237
Assets relating to provision of printing E2I2HEEEENRI (GRE 4K 1E)
of books (now discontinued) EEMNEE = 140,050
Unallocated property, plant and ROBLE -« BB MR E
equipment 99,473 5,854
Prepaid lease payments EHEERIE 79,338 86,404
Investment properties KEYE 185,636 65,648
Goodwill EES 1,061,335 1,096,481
Intangible assets BEEE 283,503 324,977
Interest in an associate R — RS A R 643,224 715,766
Interest in a joint venture R—RE&E QRN ER 8,644 -
Long-term receivables REAFE W FRIE 15,720 -
Deposits for property, plant and TE - BB M RESZ A
equipment MiZ e 21,966 6,149
Other receivables, prepayments Hfth g HﬁZzA - TR FRIB
and deposits Kiz& 54,747 33,860
Amount due from a shareholder e — & AR R A9 k1B 3,449
Tax recoverable G qEE 3,164 -
Pledged bank deposits EHEMRITIER 2,173 85,750
Bank balances and cash RITEHR AR 299,771 378,985
Consolidated assets HEeBE 4,368,408 4,483,161
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A BB RARMIEE

Forthe year ended 31 December 2015 BE - —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ*‘ I
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
Segment liabilities

2015 2014
—E-HF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Printing of cigarette packages ENfml & 1E B 5 278,389 189,571
Manufacturing of laminated papers ~ &LiE1E & 4 3,769 1,768
Total segment liabilities SEaERE 282,158 191,339
Liabilities relating to provision of ERIREFEER GRE 4K 1E)
printing of books (now discontinued) &K & & - 4,694
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIERETEA 120,231 208,169
Amounts due to non-controlling JE A FEFE AR 25 7R IE
interests - 24,741
Bank borrowings RITEE 813,673 836,062
Income tax payable NS 54,927 62,057
Deferred tax liabilities BEREEE 78,141 92,266
Government grants BT & 36,164 36,314
Consolidated liabilities wagE 1,385,294 1,455,642
Segment assets represent certain property, plant and SHEERREEZBRABRIE
equipment, trade and bills receivables and inventories A 2RSTNEFWE BENL
which are directly attributable to the relevant operating BB EINEHIE N EIWERE L
and reportable segment. Segment liabilities represent EEE oHBaERREEZBRN
trade and bills payables which are directly attributable to B LE MO 2| I E FEN
the relevant operating and reportable segment. These are HIENENEE - IO EEE R
the measures reported to the CODM for the purpose of FFEoHRBEMETEEEARSE
resource allocation and assessment of segment ERHAEA
performance.
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A BB ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

2015

8. oIER &)

HihpHER
—E-FEF

Printing of Manufacturing

cigarette of laminated Segment
packages papers total  Unallocated Total
HREEaE HERAH PHEAE ESA agt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THR TR
Amounts included in the STENMRNER
measurement of segment KD HEERTA
profit or loss or segment feH:
assets:
Addition to non-current assets  FERE)EERE 142,786 1,139 143,925 218,184 362,109
Depreciation and amortisation #7844 63,496 912 64,408 52,003 116,411
Recognition of impairmenton AR W FUE R E
long-term receivables - - - 4,990 4,990
Loss (gain) on disposal of HENE  BREKREN
property, plant and equipment 18 (Iz5) 145 132 217 (2,802) (2,525)
Recognition of wiite-downon B2 MAREFE
obsolete inventories 927 - 927 - 927
Amounts regularly providedto ~ EHIRTBLERKE
the CODM but notincluded in 124 - B &R &
the measure of segment PEE N R EREE A
profit or loss: Med:
Interest income VN (2,839) (1,056) (3,895) (2,568) (6,463)
Interest expense R 7,950 - 7,950 29,421 37,311
Taxation e 60,634 3,052 63,686 16,110 79,796

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ2 =%

—RFET-A=1+—HLHFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

8. ZHEREHR (&)

Other segment information (continued) HiupIpER ()
2014 —=-—mE
Printing of - Manufacturing
cigarette  of laminated Segment
packages papers total  Unallocated Total
OREEaE HEELAK NEEE KAk @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEL T T THL
Amounts included in the STENHRNSER
measurement of segment KA HEERTA
profit or loss or segment Me5:
assets:
Addition to non-current assets ~ JEREIEERE 188,625 3,002 192,527 3,216 95,743
Depreciation and amortisation ~ 47& K284 78,692 581 79,273 51,611 130,884
Recognition of impairmenton ~ #:22 5 EMZUERIE
trade receivables 2,485 - 2,485 - 2,485
Loss (gain) on disposal of HENE - BERE
property, plant and equipment  BYEE (&) 239 (1) 238 (264) (26)
Recognition of wiite-downon B2 MAREFE
obsolete inventories 405 - 405 - 405
Amounts regularly providedto ~ EEIR T ELERFE
the CODM but not includedin 124t - B R E
the measure of segment pE D L
profit or loss: STAMSE
Interest income MEKA (5,576) (1,180) (6,756) - (6,756)
Interest expense RS 9,704 - 9,704 36,379 46,083
Taxation B 75,529 2,250 77,779 26,244 104,023
Revenue from major products and services FEERRRB WS

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations from its major products and services is set out

in note 7.

2015 FERE

BRASEREREXTNERE
an M ARTS U R BV DT - BIRPHRET

BRI AR AR
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A BB ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.
Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and
the PRC (country of domicile).

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations from external customers is presented based
on the geographical market irrespective of the origin of
goods/services. Information about the Group’s non-
current assets is presented based on the geographical
location of the assets.

TEER(E)

thEER
AEERBESRPE(GEME) & &
E 3

BREAKERBIBEFPHFEL
g%i‘%ﬂ& sEER - REIED
5250 - TN wmEY, R IR
#h, o ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%l#m@)é?ﬂﬁéﬁﬂ
TREENMEMEZ -

Revenue from external Non-current assets
customers (Note)
RENBEF s FRBEE (M=)

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-5%F —mE —E-H5F —T-MOF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET THET FET
PRC F 1,494,961 1,703,423 2,191,440 2,256,141
Hong Kong BB - - 222,329 3,746
1,494,961 1,703,423 2,413,769 2,259,887

Note: Non-current assets excluded those relating to long-term
receivables, interest in an associate, interest in a joint venture
and deposits for property, plant and equipment.

Information about major customers
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are

Wi ERBEETRRERBEWGIE - R—
M E A AMER R —EEE AN
A RFYE - BE MEEI SR

IZS
s e

EHETERFINER
REBRFERBEEFAGARER
$HEB 10% KRR

as follow:

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—FE

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Customer A ZEA 546,204 818,251
Customer B =258 164,367 N/A 3 A *

Customer C EFC N/A 3@ A * 220,063

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.
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e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +=-A=+—HILFE

10.

OTHER INCOME 9. HfhlA
2015 2014
—F-HF —F0OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Continuing operations BEREEL
Interest on bank deposits RITFERAE 6,463 6,756
Sales of scrap materials tHE R} 3,514 3,857
Processing fee income MIEWA 481 1,939
Rental income He A 2,246 1,806
Government grants (Note) BB E (FFE) 6,949 4,009
Interest income on long-term KA YBGRIER F B M
receivables (Note 40) (Ff¥5E 40) 3,152 -
Sundry income HMIEWA 5,822 1,137
28,627 19,504
Note: Government grants were received from the government of the Mist  BUSH B € IR E P BB - FERH
PRC mainly as incentives granted by local authority for FTERABBEBERMITLMEER
encouragement of its business development except for an ® BT HP S R553000%F (=
amount of HK$553,000 (2014: HK$377,000) which was granted T—PUF : 377,0008T) BUKEEWE
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (as details in ME R (I TE) - % EE
note 36). These grants are accounted for as financial support B ABRRSER IS AR - THEITEEL
with no future related costs expected to be incurred nor related ERIARRAAEAA - B EREREESE
to any assets. A o
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Hitti&E R &8
2015 2014
—EB-HF —TWF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
Continuing operations BHEREHEK
Net foreign exchange (losses) gains  ME (518 ) W a5 %58 (52) 616
Gain on disposal of property, HEMZE - BE KEERE
plant and equipment 2,525 26
2,473 642
20155 FERE BEHERBEBEERQA 113
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. A&
2015 2014
—E-1E —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Continuing operations BEREEL

Interest on bank loans RITERFE 44,793 52,233

Less: amounts capitalised in the cost & : & &R EERK AT
of qualifying assets BRI EEE (7,422) (6,150)
37,371 46,083

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
capitalisation rate of 5.3% (2014: 6.0%) per annum to
expenditure on qualifying assets.

FRERNMEMEEKRNBREREER
REL TEBREGEREERY
EPRFEERNCLELESI%(ZF
—PO4E : 6.0%)5tHE

12. TAXATION 12. Fi18
2015 2014
—EB-HF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Continuing operations FERSEEL
Current tax: NERFRIA -
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax BTSN
(“EIT") ([TZEFREH]) 68,478 87,538
Withholding tax TABL 26,437 28,065
94,915 115,603
Overprovision of EIT in prior years: BEFECEMSH
FRERRME (3,872) (4,044)
Deferred tax (Note 37): EIERRIE (MF5E37) -
Current year KEFEE (11,247) (7,536)
79,796 104,023
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

12. TAXATION (continued) 12. FiE (&)

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made
as the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived
from, Hong Kong.

The PRC EIT is calculated at the applicable prevailing tax
rates from 15% to 25% (2014: 15% to 25%) in the PRC.
Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law for Foreign
Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises”, some
PRC subsidiaries, being a High-Tech Enterprise, were
entitled to a reduced EIT rate of 15% for the years from
2013 to 2018.

Upon the New Tax Law and Implementation Regulations,
PRC withholding income tax is applicable to dividends
payable to investors that are “non-PRC tax resident
enterprises”, which do not have an establishment or
place of business in the PRC, or which have such
establishment or place of business but the relevant
income is not effectively connected with the
establishment or place of business, to the extent such
dividends have their sources within the PRC. Under such
circumstances, dividends distributed from the PRC
subsidiaries to non-PRC tax resident group entities shall
be subject to the withholding income tax at 10% or lower
tax rate, as applicable. Under the relevant tax treaty,
withholding tax rate on distribution to Hong Kong resident
companies is 5%. Deferred taxation has been provided
on undistributed earnings of all subsidiaries and an
associate.

HRAEENWRALIEREBEE
HEE - ML E BB TR
=

Bl FTE B R B A E A E Rl
HEA% E25% (ZF—MF : 15%
E25%)ETHE - BB [HEIINFEE
PEMINHPERERE] - BT
BB AR (BBt R
E—=—FFZ T \FAERED
ERSHRE15% BH -

REFFOARERSAD - PEEN
PISBERRNENE [JFPBERM
MER|RHEENRE - ZEIFTE
FERMREENFEL ERERE
XA ERNTERAEELE
FFHERBRATR D EZEE
KE R R ERE - EARFRETY
REPERR - RZFHERAT » F
BB AR TIPEREER
CEEEERNREALI0%HTE
HASHRBRSBERK(NER)
B REBERBBE  mEL
JB R D BIR BB S 5% R FEHN
Mo BEHIBCBATE B QA K&
— fE1 B & 2 B B R 9 Ik 28 ) At R
=
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A BB ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

12. TAXATION (continued) 12. FiIE (&)
AEEMREBET HEGEER RHA
if

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit

2H W=

¥R PR R B AN A B B

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: BRANT -
2015 2014
—E—RE —E—O4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
Profit before taxation (from [ 75 A 6 A
continuing operations) (REIFERLET) 476,476 585,644
Tax at the applicable rate of 25% RIEBTR R 25% st E R Fi 18
(2014: 25%) (Note) (ZE—F : 25%) (FisE) 119,119 146,411
Tax effect of share of profit of an o — R B & R B F A B %
associate 2 (44,656) (53,727)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A] I8 5 & AR B 2 &
for tax purpose 23,967 29,493
Tax effect of income not taxable for R FTUA BT IG5 2
tax purpose (997) (2,122)
Overprovision in respect of prior WA FERERE
years (3,872) (4,044)
Tax effect of deductible temporary SRR AT O & b5 = RE TS
differences not recognised T 232 994
Income tax on concessionary rate REEMEFTERE TR (38,317) (48,471)
Deferred tax on undistributed R B AR, HERRIRD
earnings of PRC subsidiaries/ K 2 F BT IR
associate 24,320 35,489
Tax charge for the year (relating to FRFFEF
continuing operations) (BT ER S ETS) 79,796 104,023
Note: The applicable tax rate of 25% represents the applicable income sk - 8 R B R 25% KR AL BRI R %

tax rate of the subsidiaries in Shenzhen and Anhui in the PRC
which constitute the substantial part of the Group’s operation for
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 13.
On 22 December 2014, the directors announced to
dispose of the Group’s provision of printing of books
business. The disposal is consistent with the Group’s
long-term policy to focus its activities on the printing of
cigarette packages business for PRC cigarette
manufacturers. The Group has entered into a disposal
agreement with an independent third party and has
completed the disposal transaction on 12 January 2015.

The results of the discontinued operations included in the
profit for the year are set out below.

CARIEREEK
RZE—NF+HA=Z+=ZH &
EEMHERNEBNEERZT
HEFHREAEEFEIRNATEHE
BEEERORNEERENEB 2K
HBE - - A5BEEH 2B
FE-FEULEHE HEXRSE
RZZE—RAF—A+ZHREK °

ATE NG ARF R @ M2 & 1k
e IUE S

2015 2014
—E-HF E-MOF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit of provision of printing of books #2122 £5 EN 7] 3£ 7 #4345 7|
operations = 1,411
Loss on disposal of provision of HERMEELEIRERNER
printing of books operations (MF5E40)
(Note 40) (6,078) -
(6,078) 1,411
Revenue EER - 159,069
Cost of sales SHE R A = (144,251)
Other income Eag A = 2,195
Other gains and losses B bWz N B8 — 320
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX - (7,807)
Administrative expenses THAX - (8,530)
Finance costs BB A A - (336)
Profit before taxation B 5 A g = 660
Loss on disposal of operation HEXEBHEE (6,078) -
Attributable income tax income FE(RFTE TR U A - 751
(Loss) profit for the year from ERIEREEBNFE (B18)
discontinued operations A (KRB HEE ARER)
(attributable to owners of the
Company) (6,078) 1,411

2015F FERE BHIERBBERAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 13. BRIKEEK (&)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations ERIEREEBRNEERF
2015 2014
—F-Hf Z—FTWF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FHIT

Profit for the year from discontinued 2 4% | 8 & ¥ 75 1) E [E 35 7

operations include the following: BIETYRIE
Staff costs: BT :

Directors’ emoluments = - 60

Other staff costs HE TKA

Salaries and other benefits e RAEMET - 25,342
Contributions to retirement RIREAFT B K
benefits schemes - 1,673
- 27,075

Auditor’s remuneration 1% EX B B < - 59
Cost of inventories recognised as ERABFRZMFENA

expenses - 142,795
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #13 - WE MR ETE

equipment - 12,037
Reversal of impairment on trade B 08 5 EWEIERE

receivables - (19)
Interest on bank deposits RITHERFE - (728)
Cash flows from discontinued operations CRLIEREEBNAESRE

2015 2014
—ZE-HF —TNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET

Net cash inflow from operating ESEEEA NI AFEE

activities - 35,031
Net cash inflows from investing WERBEENR RN FRE

activities 53,375 1,429
Net cash outflow from financing MEEHELANIRES T FE

activities - (85,088)
Net cash inflow (outflow) HemACRE) 58 53,375 (48,628)
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e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ =%

13.

14.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

The provision of printing of books business has been
classified and accounted for as a disposal group held for
sale at 31 December 2014 (see note 14).

—RFET-A=1+—HLHFE

13. CRILEEXEK &)
R-ZE—mE+-A=+—H &
HELENRILBEEALERS D
BERASENERI TR
14) ©

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 14. o EASEZEEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FHIT
Assets related to printing of books ~ Z£5ENRI% 7487
business (Note) B E (M) — 140,050
Liabilities directly associated with HYBEAREREEE
assets classified as held for sale BEEEEMNERE
(Note) (FF5E) - 4,694
Note: B &E -

As described in note 13, the Group had announced to dispose of its
provision of printing of books business in December 2014 and has
completed the disposal transaction on 12 January 2015. The major
classes of assets and liabilities of the provision of printing of books
business at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

MK E 1AM ARBEER T —WOF
TZASMHEERHEEERER  HE
RHER_F-—AF-A+ZBREK - BHt
ERHRBEBNBERRNEERABNE
REERIIS

2015 FEHE BHIERBEBERAR]
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2015 HE—E—HAF +=-A=1+—HILtFE

14. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 4. P EAREFELEE (&)

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(continued)
2014
—NE
HK$’'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment Y - B MR 55,361
Inventories FE 8,560
Trade and bills receivables B 5 WA & B R EE 46,095
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits ~ E i FEUW 1B - BN B R iZE 2,570
Tax recoverable G qEh R 159
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRNIRE 27,305
Assets of provision of printing of books RHEEDREB>BABERFE
business classified as held for sale BE 140,050
Trade and bills payables B SN IERENER 2,231
Other payables and accruals H b pE I KR E A 2,459
Bank borrowing IRITEE 4
Liabilities of provision of printing of books RHEENREKESEA
business associated with assets classified BEEGEEEARENERE
as held for sale 4,694
Net assets of provision of printing of books REERIREFDER
business classified as held for sale (Note) BEFEEEFE KT 135,356

Note: The above amount is excluded of the dividends payable to
holding company and amounted to approximately

HK$24,680,000.

Annual Report 2015
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2015 BE - —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

15. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM 15. HEREXBNFERF
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
2015 2014
—E-HF T-MOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Profit for the year from continuing KEHOBR (BT A) TR S BB RHE
operations has been arrived at after & E B FELZRF
charging (crediting):
Staff costs: BT
Directors’ emoluments EEXMe 2,824 8,913
Other staff costs Hfb 8 TRA
Salaries and other benefits Fr REAART 101,828 122,527
Contributions to retirement RIRAEAFT B R
benefits schemes 10,655 10,711
115,307 142,151
Auditors’ remuneration A GRS 4,292 4,576
Cost of inventories recognised as R ERIMNEFEERA

expenses 973,043 1,088,904
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #% - KE KR EFTE

equipment 63,406 80,114
Release of prepaid lease payments  f#BrFE N & 718 2,185 2,234
Depreciation of investment properties & &Y EITE 5,417 3,287
Amortisation of intangible assets EmEESE GTAESNR

(included in cost of sales and RITHRAX)

administrative expenses) 45,403 45,249
Operating lease rentals in respect of BAEHEBYENKEHERS

rented premises 3,568 4,058
Recognition of write-down on BREETFTEMR Gt AHE

obsolete inventories (included in |54

cost of sales) 927 405
Recognition of impairment on trade ¥R 8 5 EW B R E

receivables - 2,485
Recognition of impairment on long- & 52 & HAfE Y 0B R E

term receivables 4,990 -
Research and development costs R AR AR (T A

recognised as an expense ﬁfﬂﬁ'ﬁfi)

(included in other expenses) 3,625 3,721
Share of taxation of an associate e — A E A Rl e I8 32,511 38,845
&%mwmmmeWMW%mmt&é%%%ﬁé%A%@

properties (2,577) (1,937)

Less: direct operating expenses B FREAESWANE

incurred for investment properties EMEFMELENEELE

that generated rental income X

during the year 331 131
(2,246) (1,8006)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2014:
8) directors were as follows:

16. EE K& 17T B R

ENHEMNIZ(ZF—MF :
E= 0 ey Ul

8%)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-—E=E-H1F+=-A=+—8Lt

122

FE
Other emoluments
E A5
Contributions
Salaries Incentive  to retirement
and other  performance benefits Total
Fees benefits bonus scheme  emoluments
FeR BINGEA
he HtERl  RERREL HE 3 BEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR TR
Executive Directors WTEE
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David EERLE - 60 - 3 63
Mr. Kiong Chung Y, ZHBLAEH
Yitox* - 343 - 15 358
Mr. Qin Song Ui - 1,227 - 26 1,253
Mr. Peng Guoyi YRELE - 758 - 2 784
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Sean Xing He* fa] R4 = - - - -
Ms. Li Li L - - = - -
Independent Non-Executive BV IEHITES
Directors
Mr.Lam Ying Hung, Andy ~ #REEME%H 122 - - - 122
Mr. Lui Tin Nang BRELE 122 - - - 122
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon BXREE 122 - - - 122
366 2,388 - 70 2,824
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +=-A=+—HILFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 16. ESRITHEAREM (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B8Zz-_FZ—MNWE+-_A=+—81t
FE
Other emoluments
Eth A
Contributions
Salaries Incentive to retirement
and other performance benefits Total
Fees bengfits bonus scheme emoluments
e RN
fikia Ethighl RERBIEAL FEoA BEM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TAL TR TR

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tsoi Tak* BREE! - 6,300 - 15 6,315
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David £ R % 4 - 72 48 3 123
Mr. Kiong Chung Y, ZMELE
Yttox - 740 - 15 755
Mr. Qin Song /e - 1,455 - 25 1,480
Non-Executive Director ~ 3EH{TES
Mr. Sean Xing He RS - - - - -
Independent Non-Executive B 8117185
Directors
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy ~ #3844 100 - - - 100
Mr. Lui Tin Nang EPN: S 100 - - - 100
Mr.SiuManHo, Smon  EXZE4 100 - - - 100
300 8,567 48 58 8,973
# Resigned on 31 October 2014 # R-E—NFE+A=+—HHI
i Resigned on 22 July 2015 ## RoE—RELA-+-BEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

16.

17.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Incentive performance bonus for the year ended 31
December 2015 was determined by the management
having regard to the performance of directors and Chief
Executive of the Company and the Group’s operation
results.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to any of
the directors and the Chief Executive as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors nor the Chief
Executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2014: three) were directors and the Chief
Executive of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 16 above. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2014: two) individual
was as follows:

16.

17.

EERTHRERGM &)

HE-_T—AF+-_A=+—AHL
FE BTEERBAQRRESZERE
BITRABHNRBURAEEHKL
EREEE T REIRIFICA

HE-_ZT—AFE-_FT—NF+=
A=+—HBLtEE AEELER
ERESERFETBRAEZNME
ERMAREB R MARE B
WMk B RmE - B2 =_F— A
FRZE—MOF+_A=+—HIE
FE BMEESHITETHAEN
2 {aHRE -

AuEEFES
AEEBRUSSHEATHEIML(Z
T—F : 30) RARBER MTT
BEE  RENMERN EXHE16
RE - R N4 (ZF—WF : 2fu)
AT AT

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e REMER 3,898 1,901
Contributions to retirement benefits R Kk i@ F5H 214t 2%

schemes 85 -

3,983 1,901
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +=-A=+—HILFE

17. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 17. AV B EHES (&)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: TENMERN T EER -

2015 2014
—F-H% —F-AF

HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 T8 7T 2 1,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 BTE

1,500,000 78 7T 2 -
No emoluments have been paid by the Group to any of HE_T—AFE-_ZT—NFE+=
the five highest paid individuals as inducement to join or A=+T—HLEFEARN AEEHE
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of MAMNESHA LTINS EER
office during the years ended 31 December 2015 and SIS MBEREENBEAEBRN
2014. RENSERBERBMEE -

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. BIRER

From continuing and discontinued operations REFELERCARIEREE
The calculation of the basic earnings per share KANRIEBEANEBETRERNEFTY
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the BT #HEEE

following data:

2015 2014
—EB-RF —FE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Earnings: 2R :
Earnings for the purpose of basic AU ESRERZT & & T
earnings per share (RRARHEB AEBEF NG
(Profit for the year attributable to )
owners of the Company) 386,372 453,711
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 18. BIRER| (&)
2015 2014
—E-1E —T—F
’000 ‘000
TR Fi%
Number of shares: ROEE :
Weighted average number of ordinary Fi LA&T & &I F AN 2 51 &Y
shares for the purpose of basic T AR INEE T 8

earnings per share

1,527,198 1,488,469

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings per share has been adjusted
for the share placing completed on 6 July 2015 (as
details in note 38).

No dilutive earnings per share is presented as the Group
did not have any potential ordinary shares during both
years.

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic earnings per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

FTEESREARRF A E B NEFE
R e —_E—RAFELASNAE
R BL & B HH AR (FF1B R s
38) °

MEZJEREERN  RE/N
SEEMEFEYBITAELEL R

B e

RARHEBEABRGREFELLE
B ERERRBHN IR T BIE
=

e

BNEIBRATHREHE -

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—UF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Profit for the year attributable to RABHEB ANEEEE R
owners of the Company 386,372 453,711
Less: (Loss) profit for the year from  Ji : B R IFE S EBENFE
discontinued operations (E18) & (6,078) 1,411
Earnings for the purpose of basic FRUAGTE R B ELEEKH
earnings per share from continuing & RREARZF & & F
operations 392,450 452,300

The denominator used is the same as that detailed above
for basic earnings per share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ2 =%

18.

19.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

From discontinued operations

Basic (loss) earnings per share for the discontinued
operations is HK(0.40) cent per share (2014: HK0.09
cent per share), based on the (loss) profit for the year
from the discontinued operations of HK$(6,078,000)
(2014: HK$1,411,000) and the denominator detailed
above for basic earnings per share.

18. SREF (&)

—RFEFT-A=1+—HLEE

RECRIEEEER

BEERIECEEBNEE (BE)
s 41 (6,078,000) BT (ZE — P4 -
1,411,000 70) kK EXERELRA
P DB BRIEKLSEBEDN
BREX(EB) BF A (0.40)
B ZZ— U4 « FR%0.09781L) »

DIVIDENDS 19. K&
2015 2014
—E-HF  ZT-WF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of & AN A5 kAN A 7% 5m
the Company recognised as IR AR B
distribution during the year:
2015 Interim — HK25.50 cents T-hFEPH — §ik25.50
(2014: nil) per share A (ZE—mF - &) 399,811 -
2014 Final — nil (2014: 2013 final —HERE — &
dividend HK9.13 cents) per share (Z2—F : —F—=
REAMR B EAZ9.13781L) - 135,897
399,811 135,897
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a special ¥R & B ﬂifé ZIK FEAMR=Z
dividend of HK15.30 cents per share has been declared —~NEFE=H BERER&ERES
to be payable to the shareholders whose names appear IR NN Hx%% OGNl
on the Company’s register of members at the close A% BN 153081l - EETEET
of business on 1 March 2016. The directors do not HEzE-_T—REER-ZE—WNF+=
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the years A=T—HLEFEIRMNRHARE -

ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

2015FFERE BHITRBEBRERAD
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
llV_\éﬂjigiﬁéé B{q-ﬁki

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

20. V¥ - MEKKE

Leasehold Furniture
landand  Leasehold Plantand  and office Motor Construction
buildings improvement  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
HELH BRR
kEgF HELEE BEREE BOERE hat:d HEIR @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FET FET FER TAR Tax
COST 783
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NF
—R—H 392,214 5,386 821,948 47,683 21913 46,202 1,335,346
Exchange adjustments [ A% (9,233) 12 (15,366) (692) (363) (1,442) (27,084)
Additions NE 37,446 1,959 7,064 3,313 272 145,689 195,743
Transfer iz 36,828 - 31,806 3,071 - (71,705) -
Transferred to investment BRIRENE
properties (90,457) - - - - - (90,457)
Disposals HE - 2,211) (33,294) (4,304) (5,058) - (44,867)
Reclassified as held for sale ~ EFHEARAZE & (3,187) (146,942) (3,385) (1,097) = (154,611)
At1 January 2015 R-Z-h%F—A—-A 366,798 1,959 665,216 45,686 15,667 118,744 1,214,070
Exchange adjustments B H A (26,076) - (40,828) (2,576) (719) (8,049 (73,248)
Additions NE 16,911 5,040 23,192 10,640 2,129 88,708 146,620
Acquired of assets through ~ EBINE —EIB AT
acquisition of a subsidiary  WEEEIEE 82,275 = L = = = 82,275
Transfer g 139,080 - 37,877 162 - (177,119) -
Transferred to investment ~ EBEZR A%
properties (6,587) - - - - - (6,587)
Disposals HE - - (24,325) (244) (3,435) - (28,004)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%F
+=-A=1+-H 572,401 6,999 661,132 53,668 13,642 27,284 1,335,126
DEPRECIATION E
At 1 January 2014 RZZE-mFE—-A—H 96,675 3,322 440,955 34,961 14,024 - 589,937
Exchange adjustments XA (2,008) 10 (8,283) (776) (254) - (11,311)
Provided for the year FNEE 19,513 - 66,881 3,199 2,558 - 92,151
Transferred to investment EREREME
properties (21,096) - - - - - (21,096)
Eliminated on disposals HE R 8 - 2,211) (13,657) (4,249) (4,841) = (24,958)
Eliminated on reclassification  EH N AHEEER
as held for sale i - (1,121) (94,431) (2,879 (819 - (99,250)
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-R%F—A—-A 93,084 - 391,465 30,256 10,668 - 525,473
Exchange adjustments 0 5 F % (4,693) - (24,258) (1,759) (525) - (31,229)
Provided for the year FEREE 17,377 653 42,132 1,492 1,752 - 63,406
Transferred to investment ~ EEZ R B
properties (1,219 - - - - - (1,219
Eliminated on disposals R = = (24,307) (222) (2,825) - (27,354)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%F
+=A=1+-H 104,549 653 385,032 29,773 9,070 - 529,077
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2015 RZE—hF
+=A=+-H 467,852 6,346 276,100 23,895 4,572 27,284 806,049
At 31 December 2014 RZE—mE
+-A=t-H 273,714 1,959 273,751 15,430 4,999 118,744 688,597
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +=-A=+—HILFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. 1% - BMER®RE &)
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, ot BMEREREGER (EEZT
except for construction in progress, are depreciated on a BERIN) TR E G EEE  Rat N E
straight-line basis, after taking into account of their A BERE NI GeHEREE
residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follow: HITE
Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the ME i LHEE AR 30F
term of lease or 30 Kig=E (LAEE & BXE)
years
Leasehold improvement 3 years MERE 34
Plant and machinery 5-12 years WE K ikzs 52124
Furniture and office 3-5 years FREEMAE 3ESF
equipment B
Motor vehicles 4-5 years RE AZBE
21. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 21. ENHERE
2015 2014
—E-HFE —T-WF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  FLRE MIEL BRI DT ¢
Current asset mMBNEE 2,092 2,220
Non-current asset FREEE 77,246 84,184
79,338 86,404
The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent payments AEENHPE T FEREENEE
for land use rights in the PRC which are held under FRIBTHRBEPHAMEAORA
medium-term leases.
2015F FERE SHERBFERADAF]
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

22. ®WEYE

HK$’000
TET
COST A<
Exchange adjustments PE 5 % (583)
At 1 January 2014 R-_ZT—NMNF—HA—H -
Transferred from property, plant and equipment BEEE ¥ E - BE L& 90,457
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NF+=-_A=+—H 89,874
Exchange adjustments b 5, SR (6,457)
Additions NE 402
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary W HE — P BB 2~ RIS P U B 123,413
Transferred from property, plant and equipment HEE B %% « BE ML EiE 6,587
At 31 December 2015 R-_E-—RF+_HA=+—H 214,819
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2014 R_TE—MNF—HA—H -
Exchange adjustments ME 5, B (157)
Provided for the year F N 3,287
Transferred from property, plant and equipment R B %% « BE &KE 21,096
At 31 December 2014 RZE—MNF+-A=+—H 24,226
Exchange adjustments BEE 34, & (1,679)
Provided for the year FANEE 5,417
Transferred from property, plant and equipment HEEE B 9% « E ME 1,219
At 31 December 2015 R-E—FRAF+=-_A=+—H 29,183
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2015 R-_E—FRF+=-_A=+—H 185,636
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—MNF+—A=+—H 65,648

AEERBELKEHERKRNESHF
BERMEESERK ARG EY
DERREMEANR -

The Group’s properties interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the cost model
and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.
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A BB RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ2 =%

22.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2015 was HK$253,673,000 (2014:
HK$70,756,000). The fair value has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group. Roma Appraisals Limited are
members of the Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong.

The fair value was determined based on the market
comparable approach that reflects recent transaction
prices for similar properties, where the market rentals of
all lettable units of the properties are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units as
well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighborhood. The discount rate is determined by
reference to the yields derived from analysing the sales
transactions of similar commercial properties in Hong
Kong and the PRC and adjusted to take into account the
market expectation form property investors to reflect
factors specific to the Group’s investment properties.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014 are as follows:

—RFEFT-A=1+—HLEE

22, REWE (%)

N

N

+_

SEREMENDAEETE

SEREMER_-_F—1F
A=+t —HBHNAREER

253,673,000/ ;o — & — IO F :
70,756,000/ 7T) - R A EBETIRE

2
%

17

AEEMEMENE LA éT%E
HEMESBEEFHAERA
MfEEMEE - 2 5 B &%ﬁ

RARIRESNEMEGNEE -

AR BEIRE R RBEELY X

s
Fit
5|
&
=
7
)
=

K=
F—
&

|E
B

Fair value
hierarchy

MR HENTHLBOEEE - M
EMmENAEEEMNTISEE
SEWERUYE R L HEERA
Hib WA ENESER - 7138
RN2ELIMBBRTERELURE
XHERZMEHBEER - A5
EREFENTISEMEL B
RAKEREMERANAER

TRt -_A=t—8Bk=
ME+-—A=+—B X&H
EMENAR AR EBEERERF
LN

Fair value Fair value

as at as at

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

R=-Z2-12F R-FNHOF
+=ZBA=+—-HB +—A=+—H

AREEEBR WAREE HAREE
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET FET
Properties located in (NEEEE kY ES Level 3
the PRC F=IE 107,373 70,756
Properties located in R EBEBNYE Level 3
Hong Kong F=E 146,300 -
253,673 70,756

2015FFERE BHITRBEBRERAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 22,

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties (continued)
For investment properties categorised into level 3 of the

BREY=(#)
AEBMREWEND R EEB(E)

DERANEBERBRE=ZENKRE

fair value hierarchy, the following information is relevant: YIERMBEER T -
Significant
unobservable
Valuation technique(s) input Sensitivity
BERTATEHE
RESE WARE BRE

Properties located in  Direct comparison method  Price per square  The 5% higher of the price

the PRC and based on market meter
Hong Kong observable transactions

of similar properties and

adjust to reflect the

conditions of the subject

property.

per square meter, the 5%
higher of the fair value.

R0 B K2 RIBRBUDENTSAIEBER ¥ KER B IRER EF5% -

HBHYFE RGETERLEE
3 VE H FEBE DA R
EiputZES:N =P

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the term of lease

NIEEENES

PR EMERATFRRBEER
EIE

HELH MHER

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of gF FHHAK30F K
lease or 30 years (ABRE & B 2E)
23. GOODWILL 23. &

2015 2014

—E-RE —ZT—U&E

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FH&T

At 1 January MR—H—H 1,096,481 1,112,181
Exchange adjustments PE 5, 52 (35,146) (15,700)

At 31 December Rt+=-_A=+—8 1,061,335 1,096,481
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

23. GOODWILL (continued) 23. BE (&)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has
been allocated to five individual cash generating units
(CGUs), comprising four subsidiaries in the printing of
cigarette packages segments and one subsidiary in the
manufacturing of laminated paper segment. The carrying
amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2015 allocated
to these unites are as follows:

HBEAATNS  BEESEER
EENReEEAEM(REELSE
7)) BREEREERE DKM
M B AR REEEERD I —
MBAARl - R=ZTE—HF+=AH
—t+—HNEEFAECES RS
PN KA

2015 2014
—E-HF  —TWF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT TET

Printing of cigarette packages: ENREEE
CGU-1 HEEEEN -1 398,194 422,521
CGU-2 REEEBM-2 132,090 140,160
CGU-3 REeEEEMN-3 44,617 47,342
CGU-4 WeEEEN-4 486,052 486,052
1,060,953 1,096,075

Manufacturing of laminated paper: R AWK -

CGU-5 HEELEMN-S 382 406
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 1,061,335 1,096,481

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs arising from
printing of cigarette packages and manufacturing of
laminated paper were determined individually based on
value in use calculations. That value in use calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period
and a discount rate of 13.9% (2014: 14.5%). Cash flows
beyond five-year period is extrapolated using a steady
growth rate ranging from 5% to 10%. Cash flow
projections during the budget period for the CGUs are
based on the expected gross margins during the budget
period. Budgeted gross margins were determined based
on past performance and the management’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amounts of the CGUs to exceed the recoverable
amounts of respective CGUSs.

REERRERBEREENES
A B AL A A] Uk [B] & BB TH @ Bl IR {F
REBEFEFREE ZEAEE
HEFAFEARBEEEEMERE
T FRRNMETEENRS RIER -
WIHEBIBIW(ZF — W F

14.5%) - AFHME RS RILE
FRERNT5%E10%TEH - RE
EABMNTEE RS RENRE
TBEHRNBEHRAENEMETE - 8
EAEREBEBAFLBEEREH ™
BERNBEMET - EREMRE -
E It S BB MM S ] pE2

TreFReELAENMNERAABERS
ERESELBNMATKREISE -

2015F FERE BHIERBBERAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

23. GOODWILL (continued) 23. B8 (&)
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, HE T RHAFER-_E—NFE+=
management of the Group determines that there is no A=+—BIFE XEEEEE
impairment of any of its CGUs containing goodwill. R FREEBRENREELSE
¥ ERE -
24. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 24, BREE
Licenses
Customer and
relationship  franchises Total
R &
EFBE YSETRE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET FHT
COST SFS
At 1 January 2014 RZE—NF—HF—H 461,310 - 461,310
Exchange adjustments  [& & % (1,101) - (1,101)
At 31 December 2014 HR=-_Z—NFE+_-_fF=+—H 460,209 - 460,209
Addition A= = 9,399 9,399
Exchange adjustments [ i, 8% (5,074) (396) (5,470)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+_A=+—H 455,135 9,003 464,138
AMORTISATION By
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—WNFE—H—H 89,983 = 89,983
Charge for the year FARX 45,249 - 45,249
At 31 December 2014 R—T—NWF+=-_A=+—H 135,232 - 135,232
Charge for the year FRFEX 45,249 154 45,403
At 31 December 2015 RZF—ARF+=-HA=+—H 180,481 154 180,635
CARRYING VALUES BRE{E
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RAF+-_A=+—H 274,654 8,849 283,503
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NEFE+—-A=+—H 324,977 - 324,977
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ2 =%

24,

25.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the following periods:

Customer relationship
Licenses and franchises

10 years
20 years

Included in intangible assets represent customer
relationship in Brilliant Circle Holdings International
Limited (“Brilliant Circle”) acquired in a business
combination in 2009 and the acquisition of
N5 LN A R A 7 Yangfeng Printing & Packaging
Co., Ltd (“Yangfeng”), a subsidiary of Giant Sino
Investment Limited $B #3% & A R 2 A (“Giant Sino”) in
2012. Brilliant Circle and Yangfeng have long and close
business relationship with the major customers. The
acquisition of the customer base has allowed the Group
to stabilise the revenue base from packaging and printing
business.

—RFEFT-A=1+—HLEE

24, BILEE (&)

tiEprEERBEEEBEY - Z
FRVEENATHRREREZE
i -

EFPB®
W BRI Ry R

104
204

BREEBRNR _ZTNFEXRH
EHRRENERIERBERAERA
ATEBDONEPHEAEIR
——FRBEFEREAR AR ([
OB RRRYIEEEHR AR
“‘7((? ERRENEFPBER -

BMEGEEIBRFPFEVARNY
i%ﬁﬂ’]%ﬂ‘*ﬁ%%%%ﬂ&gﬁgﬁ%ﬁ
BIARRBEIRE R B BR KHR X5
B R B o

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 25. R—EHE QAR NER
2015 2014
—E-hF —PO4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHBT FH&TT
Cost of investment, unlisted WEKA - 3ELET 328,650 348,729
Share of post-acquisition profits and 431 Uk B 14 33 F1) K E A
other comprehensive income, net of 2 EYtzs (F1BE 2 AR £.)
dividends received 314,574 367,037
643,224 715,766

2015FFERE BHITRBEBRERAD
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A BB ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ =%

—RFET-_A=1+T—HLFE

25. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 25. N —EBEATNER (&)
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had RZE—RFR_ZT— Eﬂfﬁﬂ— A
interests in the following associate: =+—B ANEEBRUTHEZ QA
AR
Percentage
of registered Place and
capital directly Country of
held by establishment/  Registered
Name of entity the Group operation capital Principal activity
rEBEERSS
EEMmEEA FEMRL
BEREH MESE KEHBERER CEaEfRE TEER
FREBHBERAR 35% PRC RMB163,052,000  Provision for
(Changde Jinpeng H ARE cigarette printing
Printing Co., Ltd.) 163,052,000 7T package services

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED  Annual Report 2015
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e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +=-A=+—HILFE

25. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
The financial information of the Group’s associate is
prepared using uniform accounting policies in conformity
with the accounting policies adopted by the Group. The
associate is accounted for using the equity method in

25. A—EBE N TR (&)
7N g2 B 4 N RO B TS B R R
AEBFEMNSHBE RN
BEGES - B2 DT ARERER
REREAMEBRRAR - REEH

these consolidated financial statements. The summarised AT EEREEE T
financial information in respect of the Group’s associate

is set out below:

2015 2014
—F-H% Z—FAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Current assets MENEE 1,356,631 1,819,741
Non-current assets EMEBEE 998,124 1,108,631
Current liabilities mEAE (471,777) (829,347)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - (2,413
Revenue EERE 2,419,771 2,494,358
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMN &R EEW BT
income for the year 492,920 654,330
Dividends received from the F AU ER AIMAR B
associate during the year 209,784 197,137

2015 FEHE BHIERBEBERAR]
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2015 HE—E—HAF +=-A=1+—HILtFE

25. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 25. A—RBE AT ER (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial ERGEMBREREBER LR EE
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the Bt EEREE AR REE
associate recognised in the consolidated financial HY SR -
statements:

2015 2014

—E-HF —T-OF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET TET

Net assets of the associate B aNEEFE 1,882,978 2,096,612
Proportion of the Group’s ownership N2 B 7B & A B AU = /Y

interest in the associate HmERELH 35% 35%

Carrying amount of the Group’s REEREE R R
interest in the associate = rAREE 643,224 715,766
26. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 26. R—BEELENER

2015 2014

—E-FF —T—E

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Cost of investment, unlisted WEKA - JELET 8,825 -

Share of post-acquisition loss and DB EE R EE &
other comprehensive expense, net  EAh 2 ER X
of dividends received (BB W B (181) -

8,644 =
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2015 BE - —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

26. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had interests in the

following joint venture:

26.

M— M R WS (59
RZFE-—AF+ZA=+—H XK
SERUTEERRESE

Percentage of Place and
registered capital Country of
directly held by establishment/  Registered
Name of entity the Group operation capital Principal activity
FEBEERS
EEMmREA ZEMRL
BEREE MEZE KEHBEREXR SEfiRE TEEB
AYITRHE B B AR 49% PRC RMB15,000,000  Developing 2D
BRAR] a2 AR Barcodes and
(Shenzhen Keju Internet 15,000,000 7T 020 solutions
Technology Company TR_EHR
Limited) O20 R 77 &

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s joint venture is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in
the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in

accordance with HKFRSs.

AEERELENUMBENTES
SIEAT o AT B B B RIE
BEMBHRELRNRBENASEDLE
ISR EHE

2015FFERE BHITRBEBRERAD
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

26. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 26. A—EEeELEMER &)

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity BENCEFRESREINZEREY
method in these consolidated financial statements. FBEHRFJALE ©
2015 2014
—EB-HF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Current assets MENEE 17,641 -
2015 2014
—EB-HF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET TET

The above amounts of assets include il AESFBIEAT ¢

the following:
Cash and cash equivalents RekIReFEY 17,515 &
Loss and total comprehensive FAEBEEBLAEERASEE
expense for the year (370) -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial ERGEVBHREAER LM BE
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the BHEERGE P EE=NIRAE
joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial H¥IRR -
statements:
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-WF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Net assets of the joint venture BETERNFEE
17,641 —
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREENES S EAREZEH
interest in the joint venture BB 49% -
Carrying amount of the Group’s REERAEDED
interest in the joint venture =M REE 8,644 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

27. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES 27. REAEWRIE

2015 2014
—E—-H1F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FH&T

Analysed as: DA
Current mEh 8,962 -
Non-current ERB 15,720 -
24,682 -

Included in the carrying amount of receivables as at 31
December 2015 is accumulated impairment loss of
HK$4,990,000.

The long-term receivables represent the deferred
consideration of disposal of subsidiaries as described
in the note 40. The deferred consideration of
HK$10,000,000 will be settled in cash by the purchaser
on or before 31 December 2016, and the remaining
balance shall be paid on or before 31 December 2017.
The interest-free balances are measured at amortised
cost at effective interest rate of 3.5% per annum.

Long-term receivables that are denominated in currencies
other the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

R-ZE-—AF+-_A=1t—HHE
WRIAREE - BEZRERRE
4,990,000/8 7T °

£ HA FE WOR0IE 98 B 5 40 A 1 & B
BRAAMELERE BEERE
10,000,000 T R =T — <N F
+—A=+—BxXZAHEHNE
CHEN MBBERZT—tF
+—A=+—HsZA X 2 &
RRIREHEK A E  BRFH X
£3.5% °

UHEBEEREEREEBEAINNE
EHEN REEUGIRE ST

2015 2014

—E—-F1F —ET—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

HK$ T 24,682 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

28. INVENTORIES 28. &
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Raw materials R 57,936 79,771
Work in progress R 20,937 2,617
Finished goods B 37,631 37,444
116,504 119,832
29. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 29. EZRWNERERRE
2015 2014
—EF-HF% Z—F-AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT TET
Trade receivables 2 5 e EIE 703,313 714,570
Less: allowance for doubtful debts — Jg : FRERE & (2,342) (2,485)
700,971 712,085
Bills receivables W EE 82,214 28,577
783,185 740,662
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

29. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 29. EZEWRBREWEE (&)

The Group allows a credit period of 90 days to its trade
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade and
bills receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates.

AREERTESEFIORNEED -
AT RRBEHR - BHEEFA
MEWBRER (R RERE) RER
BEI(ZO R am R B H) 1
RRER DT ©

2015 2014

—E-1E —T—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

0-90 days 0Z90H 684,153 675,107
91-180 days 91£180H 49,687 42,807
181-365 days 181 £ 365 H 35,915 21,969
Over 365 days 365 H LA E 13,430 779
783,185 740,662

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by each customer. Limits attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. The trade and bills receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired have the best
credit quality assessed by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$99,032,000 (2014: HK$65,555,000) which are past
due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

REMEMHEL A NEEFG
BEEFPEELEMRBEEPERE
EERB RAEFPRERHUNREESSF
Bz — IR - NEEFEE ZRUGK
EhEREREEREFELRY

REBE FHEBGIEREREE S
4 5) ¥E 42 BR 1 18 99,032,000 8 7T (=
T — U4 : 65,555,000 7T ) K FKIE
RIEBHE B HASBEWE
EH MR EREREE AEBEL
DL S RIRS A R o

2015F FERE BHIERBBERAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

29. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 29. BESEWEEREWERE &)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but EEHERBENE ZERRER
not impaired [
2015 2014
—EB-HF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
91-180 days 91 £ 180 H 49,687 42,807
181-365 days 181 £ 365 H 35,915 21,969
Over 365 days 365 B £ 13,430 779
Total et 99,032 65,555
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REERENET
2015 2014
“E-RE —ZT-WF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
1 January R—H—H 2,485 152
Impairment losses recognised on R EWIER R EERE
receivables - 2,618
Impairment losses reversed B ER R EE R = (152)
Amounts written off as uncollectible  #ifl #& -~ 7] W 2] Z I8 - (133)
Exchange difference X =58 (143) -
31 December R+—_A=+—=H 2,342 2,485
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are REBEHEBRERENBENE S EK
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate I A% 2,342,000 T (—Z—
balance of HK$2,342,000 (2014: HK$2,485,000) of £ : 2,485,000/87T) * ZEEEAEEH
which the debtors were in financial difficulties. BEABMIEREE -
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BYBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ =%

—RFET-A=1+—HLHFE

30. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 30. HEWFIE - BARERIE
AND DEPOSITS €
2015 2014
—E-HF — &
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT TET
Trade deposits to suppliers STRHERNE S LS 17,069 16,804
Prepayment for material purchase BERERMBATEN A 1,645 6,004
Rental, utility and sundry deposits e 2ANEEES 2,697 2,300
Staff advances BET#X 1,972 3,959
Interest receivable JEU I B, - 2,350
Receivables from disposal of B A B H B EUE
subsidiaries 29,962 -
Others Hith 1,402 2,443
54,747 33,860
31. AMOUNT DUE FROM A SHAREHOLDER/ 31. EW—ERRRIE BN FE
AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING JI% fE 22 TR IR
INTERESTS
(@) Amount due from a shareholder: (a) EW—BRERIE
Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the
year ended
31 December
2015 2015
BE—-Z—EHF
+=—A=+—8
LEFEE KR
—E-1F @HERSEH
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Name of the shareholder REREBZHE
RERKHRIZRERHD AR AR RERKLH R ZERHD
(Masterwork Machinery BRAR([RERE])
Co., Ltd.) (“Masterwork”) 3,449 3,493
20155 FERE BEHERBEBEERQA
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

31.

32.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A SHAREHOLDER/
AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (continued)
(@) Amount due from a shareholder: (continued)
The balance is trade nature for providing technological
service and purchasing of accessories with a credit
period of 90 days. The balance is unsecured and
interest-free.

(b) Amounts due to non-controlling interests:
The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and fully
repaid during the year.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.001% to 1.5% (2014: 0.35% to 3.5%) per annum.
The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rates
which range from 0.001% to 3.3% (2014: 0.35% to
5.66%) per annum. Pledged bank deposits represents
deposits pledged to banks to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group. The pledged bank deposits will
be released upon the settlement of relevant bank
borrowings.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities are
stated below:

31.

32.

PE— & IR REKIE B A SR

R HE R FRIH ()

() EBR—BRRNE: (&)
BERESRRIEH MRS KB
Bt BESEE FEH
/R90H - EERSEEHNRE

(b) MEEASIEIERERNE !
FReBRAEER RELN
FRABHEE -

SIEBETER BITEER
He
RITHEBREFENT0.001%E1.5%
(ZZE—HF:0.35%E35%) ° &
ERBRITFROFEFENF0.001%
£33%( = F — W F:035%%
5.66%) o B KM IRITF KI5 E K
FRITABERE T AEERRITH
BEWMER - BEBBRITERGRE
BEBRITEERRER -

AEBEBEEBNIEEE A
BB ENAEESERRITER
RITEBHREREIIRIT -

2015 2014

—B-HFf Z—FAF

HK$’000 HK$'000

T TAT

HK$ BT 31,537 77,859
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +=-A=+—HILFE

33. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 33. EFENRERESEE
2015 2014
—E-HF ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Trade payables B SN FIA 280,453 190,091
Bills payables T EIR 1,705 1,248
282,158 191,339
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills BEXEHEHNREH A RN E
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end SENBENENEZENER DT
of the reporting period. R e
2015 2014
—E-HF T-MOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
0-30 days 0Z230H 206,218 134,537
31-90 days 31290H 57,427 51,310
91-180 days 91 & 180H 17,256 4,997
181-365 days 1812365 H 1,153 43
Over 365 days 365 B A E 104 452
282,158 191,339
The credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 30 EEEMmMEESENFRI0EE
days to 180 days. The Group monitors and maintains a 180 B 2 Al - REBEEREFRRH
level of cash and cash equivalents sufficient to ensure e MIBEEEBEY ARG E

that all payables are within the credit timeframe.

2015 FERE

BT

NRBEREEHRAAS

BB AR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

34. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 34. HthERREBEREEH

2015 2014

—E-HF —ET—F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FHT

Other payables and accruals HAb e 0B K FEET & 25,060 19,720

Construction payables FER =R TIE 24,369 14,945

Salary payable i ANE i 20,729 24,354

Other tax payables H A pEF718 48,406 66,019

Deposits received from suppliers B EmZS 50 106

Advanced from customers RERFBR - 32

Government grants BB 2 1,617 593
Payable for acquisitions of W BEH B A T8 FEfT R IE

subsidiaries - 82,400

120,231 208,169
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

35. BANK BORROWINGS

35. IRITIRE

2015 2014
—E-1E —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Bank borrowings comprise: IRITEERIE
Secured Vgt 186,656 688,759
Unsecured a4 627,017 147,303
813,673 836,062
Carrying amount repayable: JETEREE -
Within one year —FR 536,013 740,662
More than one year, but not more iR —FERMER
than two years 113,162 95,400
More than two years, but not more BB EEBRAFER
than five years 140,498 -
More than five years RFE 24,000 -
813,673 836,062
Breakdown of the bank borrowings:  $R1TEE D $E
Fixed-rate borrowings TELEE 123,486 143,508
Floating-rate borrowings FEEE 690,187 692,554
813,673 836,062

The Group’s floating-rate borrowings are mainly subject to
interest in a range at 100% to 110% of RMB Benchmark
Loan Rates issued by the People’s Bank of China and
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate in a range at HIBOR
plus 2.74% to 3.60%. The effective interest rates on the
Group’s bank borrowings are as follows:

AEEFZEEEZTEZERTRARRE
TR AR ERELER R E
100% Z 110% &k BB RITRZEHFE
MN2.74% = 3.60% 5 B o N& E R
TEENEBRFERDT :

2015 2014
—EF-HF —TOF

Fixed-rate borrowings 7E B

Floating-rate borrowings FEEE

4.4% to & 5.6% to &

6.0% 6.3%
2.9% to £ 2.9% to &
5.6% 6.6%

2015F FERE BHIERBBERAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

35. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)
The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

35. RITEE (&)
AEBAEBEER
SN B ERRITEENT

ERMEEEN

2015 2014
—E-1E —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT
HK$ ETT 560,822 562,772
36. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 36. F#EEBE

2015 2014
—EB-HF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAExT TET

Avrising from government grants: RERAMEEE
Current liability nBBE 1,617 593
Non-current liability EREEE 36,164 36,314
37,781 36,907

In 2015, the Group received a government subsidy of
HK$3,686,000 (2014: HK$18,840,000) towards the cost
of acquisition of property, plant and equipment in the PRC.
The amount has been treated as deferred income. The
amount is transferred to income in the form of reduced
depreciation charges over the estimated useful lives. This
policy has resulted in a credit to income in the current year
of HK$553,000 (2014: HK$377,000). As at 31 December
2015, an amount of HK$37,781,000 (31 December 2014:

HK$36,907,000) remains to be amortised. H

RZE—RF AEERKEFH
ME - BERBBEMEEKAE
& 15 B AT 7 Bh 2 3,686,000 7T ( =
T — P04 : 18,840,000/8 7T ) °
HW R ABBELEWRA - WIREEHE R
FHOR O EHEAIEAEREIK
A ZHEBRAFERABBA
553,000 7T (ZE — P4 : 377,000
BL) c R—_E—AF+-_A=+—
» ©%E37,781,0008 L (—Z—M

=
ax TA

F+ - A=+—H 36,907,000
JC) B 5 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +=-A=+—HILFE

37. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 37. EEMIEARE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities ATRRAFRERBTFENCDH#
recognised and movements thereon during the current REIBEIERIEAEN R HE

and prior years:

Undistributable
profits of Accelerated
Intangible Subsidiaries/ tax Government

assets associate depreciation grants Total

WEBAR/

NG
EVEE  ADKEN  MERERE BT a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TAT TR TR

At 1 January 2014 RZE-NE-A—-H 49,923 47,906 3,848 - 101,677
(Credit charge to profit (5t A) 1183

orloss (7,194) 35,286 @A) (5,59) 20,326
Reversal upon payment R & &M - (28,326) - - (28,326)
Exchange differences AR (104) (1,246) (97) 36 (1,411)

At 31 December 2014 RZE-NF

+-A=1+-H 42,625 53,620 1,580 (5,559 92,266

(Credit) charge to profit (5t A) 1183
orloss (7,194) 24,320 (1,490) (446) 15,190
Reversal upon payment R & &M - (26,437) - - (26,437)
Exchange differences 5 A (129) (2,998) (90) 339 (2,878)

At 31 December 2015 R-E-1F
+-A=1—-H 35,302 48,505 - (5,600) 78,141
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

38.

SHARE CAPITAL 38. &4
Number Nominal
of shares value
REE H{E
HK$’000
TAET
Authorised: SEIE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each &A% {E 0.005 7 7T H) & A%
At 1 January 2014 and RZZE—mF—H—BXK
1 January 2015 —E—RF—HA—H 2,000,000,000 10,000
Increased by share placing FERR GBS M (FizEa)
(Note a) 8,000,000,000 40,000
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RF+=-H=+—H 10,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each &A% E {E 0.005 /& 7T &) & 3@ A%
At 1 January 2014 and R-ZZE—NFE—A—BK
1 January 2015 —ET-RF—H—H 1,488,468,634 7,442
Issued by share placing (Note b)  FEiBAX D ECE 21T (it b) 79,416,000 397
At 31 December 2015 R-ZTE—-RE+=-A=+—H8 1,567,884,634 7,839

Notes:

PEE

(@)

On 27 October 2015, the Company increase the authorised
share capital of the Company to HK$50,000,000 divided into
10,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an additional
8,000,000,000 new shares which shall rank pari passu with the
existing shares in all respects upon issue.

On 22 May 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement
(the “Placing Agreement”) with the placing agent, an independent
third party, to place up to 80,000,000 placing shares to the
placees, who include connected persons of the Company and
staff of the Group, at a price of HK$1.70 each (the “Placing”).

The Placing was completed on 6 July 2015 in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement under which
a total of 79,416,000 placing shares had been successfully
placed by the placing agent to not less than six placees at the
placing price of HK$1.70 per share. The proceeds were used for
transformation of some of the Group’s factories into intelligent
factories and as general working capital of the Group. These new
shares rank pari passu in all respects with other shares in issue.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2015

(@)

RZE—RETA-++B KOTEB
RE 5N % 8,000,000,000 #7517 » #§ AN D A
% F B # £50,000,00058 T D K
10,000,000,000 L1 o B AR M2 4T1E BRI
BRONEHEZEREMAL

R-E—RERA-+=-H A FH
— BB FE=AREREVEEHE
(TEE R BHER1.70BTHER
HARA(BEAARBEALRANE
B & T ) fit & & % 80,000,000 A% i & A%
H([EBEEEHE]) -

REZEECR S —RF+ANBRE
FR & e MR G EAK - IRIRELE
Wik BEERERII AR DR N B AR
A Bt & & 379,416,000 f% B & B 17
REEAEERKMI1.70E T FIBR
ERAREAEEET THER AN
THARBEAEE—REEED - It
EHRAOEEMBEBRITRONS HTEZR
BRI ZE T -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

39. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. WEEHE LT
Acquisition of a subsidiary and additional equity U BB B B I B B R BB I AR A
interests in subsidiaries
On 13 November 2014, the Group entered into an RZE—MHF+—A+=H &%
agreement with a shareholder of a non-wholly owned HARNREEZENBRAIHRE
subsidiary of the Company to acquire 100% equity AU WKETRBRIEERR
interests of Emperor Great Investments Limited 75 /&% & el ([#5%]) #9100% %k - EhA
BIRA 7] (“Emperor Great”), which is directly beneficially NBIEEENE N TIEENEN
interested in 40% equity interests of Giant Sino and its BArZE(SEAeEEER])
subsidiary, Yangfeng (collectively referred as “Giant Sino BEEETZH BI0NKE R
Group”), non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, B EEES T40%WE RE
and simultaneously acquired the remaining 40% equity 782,400,000 L KHERZE
interests of the Giant Sino Group, at a consideration of —mME+_A+=B=K > BEAE
HK$82.4 million. The transaction was completed on 13 EPRRAT] °
December 2014. Emperor Great is an investment holding
company.
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition R HERZNEERBENT ¢
is as follows:
HK$’000
TET
Non-current asset RBEE
Interest in an associate REEE QR ER 163,623
Current asset REEE
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 1,797
Current liability REBAE
Income tax payable NS (1,797)
163,623

2015F FERE BHIERBBERAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

39. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. WHEMEB QT (&)

Other reserves arising on acquisition WEBEENEMREES
HK$’000
FAT
Fair value of identifiable assets and SFEEE R EREERAED
liabilities of the Giant Group NAEE 163,623
Other reserves arising on acquisition U b 2 A Y Ho A A (81,223
Total consideration BRE 82,400
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WIBELNWRERAFEHE
HK$’000
FAT
Consideration paid BERRE =
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances o PTESHESRESEE
acquired I8 B #ek (1,797)
1,797
The difference between the fair value of consideration W ESEEINREDNIRERD
paid for the acquisition of additional equity interests in AREEEE B IFEREREKRD
Giant Sino Group and the carrying amount of B R =58 581,223,000 7L B &
non-controlling interests acquired amounting to fth fh 4 AR FIBR o
HK$81,223,000 is charged to other reserves.
Details of the transactions are set out in the RoHBHERARARBHR-E
announcement of the Company dated 13 November —UFE+—HAT=HHAM °

2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
As referred to in note 13, on 12 January 2015, the Group
discontinued its provision of printing of books business at
the time of disposal of its subsidiaries, CT Printing Limited
ARBERRAR AR (‘CT Printing”), 5FRARE R T (R
YA R A 7 Shitian Paper Craft (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“Shitian Shenzhen”) and & FAFEL BE RINER A
7] Jinshitian New Packaging (Shenzhen) Limited
(“dinshitian”). The net assets at the date of disposal were

40.

HE KB L

I ST - R F—RF—
A+-RB AEERLEENBA
AFREZ2HMBRAR(FRA
2)) FRAZBERRIDBERA
A(TFRAEND REeFRFUEE
CRIDBRAR(T2FR]EELE
HR R ERERIES - RH & B H
HEEFEMT

as follows:

HK$’'000
FET
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 8,560
Trade and bills receivables 5 EBGIE K RN R 47,204
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits  H fith fEUWFKIE « FENFIE MiZ® 3,529
Tax recoverable A] Y [B] 7 18 159
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR MRS 27,305
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - WE MR 55,361
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and bills payables B S RN IBERENER 2,231
Other payables and accruals Hith fe "t /18 R JEET B A 2,515
Bank borrowing RITEE 4
Net assets disposal of (Note a) HE&EFE (Ffizka) 137,368
Net assets disposal of HEEEFE 137,368
Reclassification of cumulative translation REEREHN DB RAELFE
reserve upon disposal to profit or loss £ (3,090)
134,278
Loss on disposal HEEE (6,078)
Present value of total consideration HEREWMIRE 128,200
Unearned finance income RERFBWA 5,480
Total consideration BRE 133,680
2015F FEHRE BEIERERERAR]
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. HEKB QT (&)
HK$’000
FHT

Satisfied by: AT AT

Cash "4 80,680

Deferred cash consideration (Note 27) EER e RE (MiFE27) 53,000

133,680

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEMRESRAERE -

Total cash consideration received BEBERERE 80,680

Less: bank balances and cash disposal of B EHERITESRERSE (27,305)

53,375

Notes: st -

(8) The above amount is excluded of the dividends payable (@  LEHFIETEIEEMZERAFRE - &
to holding company and amounted to approximately RE4) 524,680,000 7T °
HK$24,680,000.

(b)  The deferred consideration includes dividends receivable of b) EEREEIEREEUALE 21,000,000
HK$21,000,000, which is interest free. The deferred B JT o & X X (& 10,000,000 Tt #5 7
consideration of HK$10,000,000 will be settled in cash by the —E—RFE+-_A=1+—HxZAHE
purchaser on or before 31 December 2016, and the remaining TR SN - MBREFR T —tF
balance shall be paid on or before 31 December 2017. The FTZA=+T—HxZAZT - REEREE
interest-free balances are measured at amortised cost at effective RBERATE  BERFMNER35%
interest rate of 3.5% per annum (as details in note 27). (FEBAME27) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B EZ = —HAF+=-A=+—HILFE

41. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS

4. WEREE

On 10 July 2015, Empire Sail Limited # fi & B A 7 R_Z—AFt+tA+H ARA2
(“Empire Sail”) a wholly owned subsidiary of the BB AR TEMARAB(HM])
Company, entered into a Provisional Sale and Purchase BBV - TR KE-—HEENSE
Agreement with an independent third party in relation to IR EERE T 2R
the acquisition of the entire equity interest of an entity for BB RN B BN ERIEEL
the main purpose of acquiring properties and car parking 18 & (B & 205,900,000 74 7T A
spaces in Hong Kong at a total cash consideration of B E KR T AR B E Ak K2
HK$205,900,000, in order to provide a larger premise to EREHRKESKE XHER
the Group for future development and guard against —E-RAFNA=FT—HEK-

future rental fluctuation. The transaction was completed

on 31 August 2015.

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of RWEBHEIZNEEREGENT :
acquisition

HK$’000

FHBT

Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B MR 82,275
Investment properties wEYHE 123,413
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits  H i U TIB - BN R IB RiZS 222
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accruals Hith fE "t kI8 R FEET B A 10
Net assets value BEFE 205,900

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

WiBEA MR R F 58

Consideration paid in cash MREZ[ARE 205,900
Note: The above amount is excluded of the amount due to holding MizE : E BB IEEMIER AT I8
company and amounted to approximately HK$173,326,000. B{E{E44173,326,000/8 7T °

2015F FERE BHIERBBERAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF +=-—A=+—HIFE

42.

43.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The Group operates a mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under control of a trustee. The Group
contributes lower of 5% of relevant payroll costs or
HK$1,500 per person to the Scheme, which is matched
by employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the PRC government. The Company’s subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$10,725,000 (2014: HK$12,442,000) represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the plans.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

42.

43.

BB FTE
REBREEMECEREELE
BHERATEEETE - G EERK
EEEESPHERE  YHELAE
ENESIEE - ASBERETEIER
BABBH X AT EBB5%51,500
BT BEEEL S HK -

AEBRTENEE ST EBFDN
BREEERKRBHNAEIMNKE - K
ARMBARARREFEETAD
LR RRENETE - AREH R H#
B  AKREFLFENEEER
AIRBETEELFTF R

ERiEmERALRF 10,725,000
BT (ZZE D4 : 12,442,000 7T)
FEAREEIZAT SR AT L R @
SR EMEE R R o

KeEHE

AKEBAHFREA

REEER  AEEATA]BEEL
&1 & R R 5 1K FE 5 1 & {5 B
T

2015 2014

—E-HF ZE-MOF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

Within one year —FNR 1,213 905
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~ £ _-FEEXFERE

(BEEEME) 1,729 2,102

2,942 3,007

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of 2 to 4 years and rentals
are fixed over relevant lease term.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ2 =%

43. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$2,246,000 (2014: HK$1,806,000). All of the Group’s
investment properties are held for rental purposes. They
are expected to generate rental yields of 4.89% (2014:
4.99%) on an ongoing basis. All of the properties held
have committed tenants for the next 1 year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum

lease payments:

—RFET-A=1+—HLHFE

?ﬁ'ﬁé*ﬂ% \/’_’/
AEERZHAA

AL(ZF—HF

EREHEE -

FARABRDNYERS WA A 2,246,000
1,806,000/ 7T) °
EASBEEREMELSRIAESM
BFH EHREMERBFEREE
EEHSOHEL89% (T —MF :
4.99%) ° FTER B ER KRR —F

RMEHR AEEEBEFTON
ARFRERENTKAT :

2015 2014
—F-I1% —m%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHBT
Within one year —FR 3,110 1,299
44. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44, EREE
2015 2014
—E-REF —ZE—JUF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the  R&ra BBz AL R
acquisition of property, plant and WEE % - = MR
equipment contracted for but not BERTAERBENE AR
provided in the consolidated
financial statements 40,211 9,952
Capital expenditure in respect of the REFE B HRERFT AL &
investment in joint venture NEEREREMNDETA
contracted for but not provided in ’T’Eﬂiﬁéﬁﬁ’] BARFHZ
the consolidated financial
statements 14,113 -
54,324 9,952
2015F FERE SHERBFERADAF]
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45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 4 March
2009 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors, employees, customer or supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group, consultant,
adviser, manager, officer or entity that provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group
or its members (the “Eligible Participants”), and will expire
on 4 March 2019. Under the Scheme, the directors of
the Company may grant options to Eligible Participants
to subscribe for shares in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. However, the total maximum
number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2015

45. IR AERSRHORS

RRRRAEEBRETE

ARREREE (58D RER
“ETNF=-ANBEBBARER
BRW® - TERESE  ES  TPX
Emak ARG HER - BRE - ERA
KIE - TTHRABSRRANEESHEK
S NI b S S s R TR
ER(ARER2HEE NIEHERE
YHR—F—NF=ZAWBEM -
REE NRAREFAAEER
SEERNBRE  ARBARRF]

Pt o

EREARDNBRREEFIAENER
T BEBFEJEREOERED
ERARG BB T SEE AR RMEM
REIE ZBITIRMHAI10% © AT
BEITE B RITEERER T
THERO &SRB TFEBARA]
B B BT AR 30% ° fifi[ — & A
AAEERRERIBILIENITES
BEXEBNEABBEALTRENE
ARAERER 1218 A R BE AR F]
EARFRENEETRH0.1% RRE
B(ABZARRE BRELNEH
WERAMARAARDUMERSE
%) B %1 5,000,0008 ¢ © AEER
BERE EESIELE -
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45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

46.

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from
the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. Options
may be exercised at any time for a period determined by
its directors which shall not be later than the day
immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of the date
of grant. The exercise price of the share options must be
at least the highest of (i) the nominal value of an ordinary
share on the date of grant; (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of the offer of the
share options; and (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer.

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
share options had been granted and the Company had
no share options outstanding at 31 December 2015 and
2014.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the assets pledged by the Group to secure the bank
borrowings granted to the Group are as follow:

45. IR AEBRNRNR S (@)

46.

ERBRAEEBRETT 8 (F)

RErBREANK L AMZ28H
NEX  ARABRXNEZERES
KB - BERETNESEENT
BBER 1T - HETBERERRY
BH+BFAER - BRETEE
ARNMTEREE @ ()R BHEAEK
BT B (i) 78R R B i B ER g 32
T8 B B R AT A2 A B 4 B I
B N BER L A AR ER
S EBXEERERABRARA]
BRI E -

BE-T-HEFR-F-MF+=
A=+—BLtEE UEBRER
£ MARRNR-ZZE—HEFR-ZE
—mNFE+-A=+—HIERKRT
{ERE AR o

EEEH

RIS IR - A BRI AR RS
FAEEORGEENEEEEE
T :

2015 2014
—EB-HF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Property, plant and equipment M R MRS 113,865 38,609
Prepaid lease payments EHEERIE 4,752 5,163
Investment properties KEYHE 123,815 -
Trade receivables B 5 W ETE 483,547 409,528
Bank deposits IRITER 2,173 85,750
728,152 539,050

2015F FERE BHERBFEERADF
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(a)

—RFET-_A=1+T—HLFE

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47. BEALR S
Transactions with related company (a) HEAEQARNXRS
The Group had the following significant transactions RAEERN - AEEETTS
with related parties during the year: BEAEEALRS
2015 2014
—Z-HF —PO4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
Non-controlling interests with HBEATHE
significant influence over the BEREEIN
subsidiaries: FEERER
Printing of cigarette packages ENfpl & & B 5% 8,222 33,263
Shareholder: BRER
Service income AR TS U A 2,965 -
Purchase of printing and packing FEE R & B Ea#as
machineries 6,099 -
Company under controlled by ZIERR AR R AV
the close member of the EHEIHNAT -
Controlling Shareholder:
Rental expense HERXZ 1,392 116

(b)

(c)

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position and in

(b)

BB A T BNRE TR
wER N3 IHE -

note 31.
Compensation of key management personnel (c) XEEBEAEMS
The remuneration of directors and other members RAFE EEREMTEE
of key management during the year was as follows: BAEBHBMEST
2015 2014
—E-HF —Pu4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short-term benefits LHHZ’“ |2 7,647 13,092
Contribution to retirement benefits RSN T EE
schemes 244 143
7,891 13,235

Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +=-A=+—HILFE

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 47. BEA TR F (£&)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) EEBTEBAEMNE (E)
(continued)
The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

EELTBTBRAENMEH
THMEEEEEREARER
MIZBBRETE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31
December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

48. 48. AR FIMB A RFE
RZE—RAFER-_FT—NF+_A
=+t—HB  ARAKERRFIBW
T :

Issue and fully

Place of Proportion of registered capital/ paid ordinary
establishment/ issued share capital/ share capital/
incorporation/ equity interests and voting registered
Name of subsidiary operation power held by the Company capital  Principal activities
& & ERITREH
B/ MR, AARBEEMBA BRITRE HRER
WEADER EEBH REEZRRFERD BE/ERREA TEER
Directly Indirectly
B Gk
2015 2014 2015 2014
—%-1f —T-NF -T-If —T-NF
% % % %
CT Management British Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00 - - US$200  Investment holding
Investments Limited
HAEBREARAA RBETHES 200%T REER
Brilliant Circle Group British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$1  Investment holding
Holdings Limited
EMEEERERAR RBETHES 1%L REER
Brilliant Circle Printing & British Virgin Islands - = 100.00 100.00 US$10,000  Investment holding
Packaging Limited
EBIRBRERAA RBENHEE 10,0007 RAER
Union Virtue International Limited  British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$1  Investment holding
RERRERAF RBETHEE 1ET RAER
Brilliant Circle Development Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00  HK$2,000,000 Investment holding
Limited
EBBRERAT BE 2,000,000 AR
Champion League Investment British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$100  Investment holding
Holdings Limited
BERBERERAR RBRETHS 100%7T HEERK
Sanbond Investment Limited Hong Kong - = 100.00 100.00 HK$100  Investment holding
BEREBRAA BE 10087 HERRK
20155 FERE HEERERBRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

48.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

48. AR T B A BFE (&)

COMPANY (continued)
Issue and fully
Place of Proportion of registered capital/ paid ordinary
establishment/ issued share capital/ share capital/
incorporation/ equity interests and voting registered
Name of subsidiary operation power held by the Company capital  Principal activities
ERITREBY
R/ MR, AAAREEMBA BRITRE/ BRER
WEARER BEME RAERRREENS BA/EMBA EEEE
Directly Indirectly
E# &
2015 2014 2015 2014
~B-1% “T-QNF -B-RfF TN
% % % %

ERSEINMREIBABERAR  PRC = = 100.00 100.00  US$12,461,000  Printing of cigarette
(Bengbu Jinhuangshan packages
Rotogravure Printing Company
Limited)

HE 12,461,000%7 EIRIEERE

FEBERIERAR PRC - - 100.00 100.00  HK$9,600,000 Investment holding
(DRINER ]

(Shenzhen Guilian Printing
Limited) (“Shenzhen Guilian”)
i 9,600,000/ HEER

RIITRE B BRAR PRC - = 99.49 99.31 RMB  Printing of cigarette
(Shenzhen Kecai Printing 194,720,000  packages
Co., Ltd.)

HE ARE HRFESE
194,720,000 7T
zHEeREVEARERAR" PRC - - 79.60 79.60  US$3,000,000 Printing of cigarette

(Xiangyang Jinfeihuan Colour packages
Packing Co., Ltd.)

HE 3,000,000%7T EIRIEZEEE

BAZRORMEERAR PRC - - 80.00 80.00  US$1,000,000 Manufacturing of
(Zhaotong Antong Package laminated paper
Material Co., Ltd.)

H 1,000,000%7T #EARLEIE

Giant Sino British Virgin Islands 60.00 60.00 40.00 40.00 US$100  Investment holding

BE RBRETHS 100X HEZR

Emperor Great British Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00 = = US$100  Investment holding

R RBRETHES 100%€r REER

Fortune Chaser Limited Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$100  Investment holding

RIEFRAR 5 10087 REER

Empire Sail British Virgin Islands 100.00 - - = US$100  Investment holding

G RBRETES 100%€7r REER

Best Legend International Hong Kong - = 100.00 = HK$10,000  Investment holding
Holdings Limited

FEERRERERERAA & 10,0007 REZK

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED  Annual Report 2015
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48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

48. XA TEIME A BIFE (&)

COMPANY (continued)
Issue and fully
Place of Proportion of registered capital/ paid ordinary
establishment/ issued share capital/ share capital/
incorporation/ equity interests and voting registered
Name of subsidiary operation power held by the Company capital  Principal activities
ERITREBHY
R/ MR, ARAAREEMBAERITRE/ BRER
HEAR AR BEME RAERRREENS BAE/EMBA EEEE
Directly Indirectly
E# GiE:3
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-1f "T-NF ZE-1F _Z-MF
% % % %
CT Printing™ Hong Kong - - - 100.00 HK$20,000  Provision of printing
services
FREgE B 20000787 HREENRIRRT
Shitian Shenzhen*** PRC - - - 100.00 US$  Provision of the
1,600,000 printing of
packaging and
decoration matters,
research and
development on
printing technology,
wholesale, import
and export of the
packaging products
and other related
services
FFRRIN H 1,600,000k HEREFEDRS
NI~ ENlBR i
HE - BREMN
HEREHOR
E iR %%
Jinshitian®* PRC - = - 100.00 US$  Provision of printing
10,000,000 services
ST h 10,000,000%7T  FEHENRIAR 75
Yangfeng® PRC - - - 100.00 RMB  Printing of cigarette
49,850,000 packages
Her HE ARE HREESE
49,850,0007T
* Company incorporated as a sino-foreign equity. * ARFMARIINEEELE -
# Company established as foreign invested limited liability & RNAEIKS BINEEEBR AT

company.
* Company disposed on 12 January 2015.
Company terminated on 5 August 2015.
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

at the end of the reporting period or at any time during
the year.

>

Nk

ARER-F-HE—A+ =R -
ARER=F-AS/\ARHAEH-

%/HHEKBZZKEFEEHH%W i

BB AR BT ERERE

2015FFERE BHITRBEBRERAD
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—HAF +=-A=+—HILtFE

49. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 49. MEERFERERNIESRE
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NlENGIEE R
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
The table below shows details of non wholly-owned TREY ANEBES EAIEIERERE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- H=RIEEEMB A RS

controlling interests:

Place of
incorporation Proportion of
and principle ownership interests and
Name of place of voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
subsidiary business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
AfEIEE  EEREZSHARFERES
WEARER REEER BENRER PRFHERERNETR Aot ERER
31112/2015 317122014 31M2/2015  31/12/2014  3112/2015  31/12/2014
—E-1f —EF-@mf C-E-1f C—T-@WF C-E-1F CZT-MF
t=A=+-8 tZA=+-R +ZA=t+-8 +ZA=+-B +ZA=t-B +ZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARx TR ThRL ThEL
Giant Sino Hong Kong - - - 21,958 - -
Summarised financial information in respect of each of REEHRBERFERERANE
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling NRIZENMBERESIINT -
interest is set out below. The summarised financial TAMHBEER R EREEERNRA]
information below represents amounts before intragroup REITHIEAINESRE ©

eliminations.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED  Annual Report 2015
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49. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 49. BEERIEREZNHERE
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL M A B (&)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

Giant Sino Investments Limited SFERERRAT
2015 2014
—F-H% Z—F-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Current assets MBNE E - 189,448
Non-current assets EMENEE - 337,890
Current liabilities mMENE EE - 163,458
Non-current liabilities EMEBEE - 40,392
Equity attributable to owners of KAEIHEB AELER
the Company - 333,488
Revenue Wz - 324,779
Expenses 53 - 51,990
Profit and total comprehensive FRmMNREEE SRR
income for the year - 46,362
Profit and total comprehensive AEBEEM AN EEmKE
income attributable to the Group KREE - 24,409
Profit and total comprehensive FEFE AR A 2 FE A 5 )
income attributable to the non- EmEN R Aa%E
controlling interests - 21,953
Profit and total comprehensive FRmMNREEE SRR
income for the year - 46,362

Dividends paid to non-controlling AR B T IR AR

interests - 49,168
Net cash inflow from operating ESEEEANIR S R A R

activities - 94,977
Net cash outflow from investing KEEHELAMNRSRL F5E

activities - (4,136)
Net cash outflow from financing BEESEANIRS B

activities - (122,920)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReMRESFEEBE B FRE

equivalents - (832,079)
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50. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

51.

On 22 January 2016, Shenzhen Guilian, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and Tianjin Rongcai
Technology Co., Ltd (“Tianjin Rongcai”), a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of Masterwork, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, established an entity of X
R E R s BER AR AR (Tianjin Rong Lian Hui
Zhi Intelligence Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.) (“Tianjin
Rong Lian”) in the PRC for the purpose of planning,
design, research and development, and sales of
intelligent and environmentally-friendly production among
the tobacco packaging industry. The initial registered
capital of Tianjin Rong Lian is RMB30,000,000 which is
contributed as to 60% by Tianjin Rongcai and 40% by
Shenzhen Guilian.

Details of the transaction is set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 29 December 2015.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

50.

51.

REMEBEIE

RZE—RF—AZ+=H A2
AIEENBARFRIIEH EARQA
FTERRRERENIFEZEWBE AR
AIREBRERFER AR ([ REE
%2 1) A B AR ST K R SR B DB S S e
BEREERAR(RELE])
MREERRERS - Kt HE
RIHEERIRREE - RAELEY]
taaE & AR R A KR #30,000,0007T -
HAXZEEZRFINEBHRIEE
60 % K& 40 % °

REFBIRARATBEBBEA-Z
—RAF+ A+ NHWRH -

KA B H AR RE

2015 2014
—E-HfF _—TNOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current asset FRBEE

Interests in subsidiaries B /B R R M= 1,255,609 1,255,608

Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b e We SR8 107 52
Amounts due from subsidiaries N EPNGIE ] 146,506 -
Bank balances and cash RITEREIR® 2,258 14,102
148,871 14,154

Current liabilities Bk =R
Other payable and accruals H At < FRIE K FE A B 560 278,366
Bank borrowings RITIEE 223,162 326,911
223,722 605,277
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51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 51. KA TR REE (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

2015 2014
—ZE-HF —E—UF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Net current liabilities REEEFE (74,851) (591,123)
Total assets less current liabilities B & ERABAE 1,180,758 664,485
Non-current liability FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 277,660 98,456
Net assets EEFE 903,098 566,029
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital R AN 7,839 7,442
Reserves i 895,259 558,587
903,098 566,029
The Company’s statement of financial position was ARAHBERABREEBEESR
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of TE-RE-AZ A AERE
Directors on 24 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf BT WAHTIIEEREESE -
by:
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David Mr. Qin Song
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
-1 AL
EE EF
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51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 51. KA T BRRIER (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement in reserves #HiEEH
Retained
profits
Share Share Other Dividend  (Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses) Total
REEA
Bx RHEE Bt REfE  (R:ER) fazt

HK$000 HKS000  HK000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
AT TR TR TR AT AT

At 1 January 2014 R-Z-PmE-A-H 7442 4,805,003 (4,267,200 135,897 (188,033 493,109

Profit and total comprehensive S RRFIR2 EMEAE

income for the year - - - - 127,594 127,594
Acquisition of non-controling  WEESFRRER

interests - - 81,223 - - 81,223
Fial dvidend paid for 2013~ ~E— =& %8RE - - - (1%89) - (1389)

At 31 December 2014 R-E-mE
+-A=1-H 7442 4,805,003 (4,185,977) - (60,439) 566,029

Ordinary shares issued by~ BBROTERTLEER

share placing 397 134,610 - - = 135,007
Transaction costs attributable %174 LBk E(L

{0 issue of new ordinary RARE

shares - (2,700) - - - (2,700)
Profitand total comprehensive  ERKFIR 2 EN @5

income for the year - - - - 604,573 604,573
Dividends recognised as BRAEDENRS

distribution - - - - (399,811) (399,811)

At 31 December 2015 R-E-1f
+-A=1-H 7839 4,936,913 (4,185,977) - 144,323 903,098
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Five Year Financial Summary

hEHBEBRE

(A) RESULTS (A) %18

For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=t-HLEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—F—% Z%-f ZF-=f IZE-NF ZB-IF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THER TER TET FET TR

(Restated)
(lE5)
Revenue e 1,689,537 1,939,440 1,882,954 1,703,423 1,494,961
Operating profit Feyil 343,076 364,089 375,938 370,738 297,851
Share of profit of ok o il A=/N]
an associate el 156,424 197,767 212,342 214,906 178,625
Profit before taxation KA AR A 499,500 561,856 588,280 585,644 476,476
Taxation 18 (81,150) (98,772) (89,084) (104,023) (79,796)
Profit for the year from  BEL L%
continuing operations B 5 A 418,350 463,084 499,196 481,621 396,680
Profit/(loss) for the year B4R R4 7
from discontinued MERRF/
operations (B8) = - 2,756 1,411 (6,078)
Attributable to: FEfA -
Owners of the ARAHEEA
Company 387,572 432,630 454,345 453,711 386,372
Non-controling R ER
interests 30,778 30,454 47,607 29,321 4,230

418,350 463,084 501,952 483,032 390,602
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Five Year Financial Summary

T FEMBEHRE
(B) ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (B) EERAE
At 31 December
R+=ZR=+—H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—E——% T CT-=ZFf "T-ME =T-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
AT TAT TAT AT TEx
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 3,212,977 4,651,145 4,606,567 4,483,161 4,368,408
TOTAL LIABILITIES “mef (1,243,629)  (2,168,889)  (1,711,230)  (1,455,642) 1,385,294
1,969,348 2,482,256 2,895,337 3,027,519 2,983,114
EQUITY FE{LRES -
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company AR AHEA A 1,914,078 2,247,473 2,637,313 2,968,868 2,930,460
Non-controlling interests ~ JEHERR 2 55,270 234,783 258,024 58,651 52,654
1,969,348 2,482,256 2,895,337 3,027,519 2,983,114
Note: Certain comparative figures have been restated as a result of the Mz B FhREFEAXBAEHM TAE
business and reclassified to conform with the current year’s P WEMSBEUREAFEZEY -
presentation.
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